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Ningbo Liwah won the title of “Outstanding Enterprise for
Listing”

Ningbo Liwah won the title “2010 Top 10 Pharmaceutical
Enterprises in Ningbo”

Ningbo Liwah’s Project on “The development and
industrialisation of the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis
by Total Glucosides of White Peony” was awarded Second
Prize in the Science and Technology Award of Zhejiang
Province for the year of 2010

Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited was incorporated
in Bozhou, Anhui Province with business of planting and
growing, sale and purchase of Chinese herbs

Ningbo Liwah was awarded “Model Enterprise for
Innovation in Technology in Ningbo”

The 22nd World Congress of Dermatology was held in
Seoul, Korea. Pafulin, a Lansen product, was presented at
international dermatology conference for the first time

Construction started on a new R&D and QC building of
Ningbo Liwah

Ningbo Liwah was awarded “Exemplary Enterprise for
Patents in Zhejiang Province”

Lansen signed an exclusive marketing and distribution
agreement with Ethypharm for ketoprofen/omeprazole

slow-release capsules in the PRC

Phase two construction of Ningbo Zhiti commenced
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108 ERVEDAEERZESHAEYHA  Ocober  Ningbo Liwah's “Total Glucosides of White Peony Capsules
BERBE | (IR W] A2011FHE (Pafulin), a drug for the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis”
NIERTE| was listed in the 2011 National Torch Programme
PR EES FIBRILIETAEI T2 Lansen signed an exclusive marketing and distribution
mEFTE RV EEN T ERBEREE agreement with Shanghai Jahwa for all special skin care
KRR products under the “Yuzhe” brand through hospital

channels in the PRC

12H HFERBIERS MM E#EE  December Ningbo Liwah passed the review as a “National High
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Technology Enterprise”

Ningbo Liwah successfully applied as “an innovative team
in Enterprise Technology in Ningbo”

Ningbo Zhiti Engineering and Technology Centre obtained
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certification by the Provincial-level and Region-level
Enterprise Technical Centre in 2011
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Financial Highlights

B BEERAR AR RENBARMAZMT

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are pleased

DIRERE to announce the following summary of results:
2011 2010 Change
—g——% —T-=T% 28
FE(TER) - Results (US$’000):
LYON Revenue 74,475 58,607 27.1%
BR BT 1S B¢ ALt 7 Profit before income tax 15,148 12,785 18.5%
F R ) Profit for the year 12,453 10,213 21.9%
BEFlgER : Profitability:
HF Net profit margin 16.7% 17.4% -0.7%
FARERB R () * Basic earnings per share (US cents)* 3.0 2.7 11.1%
RRGRERET Proforma basic earnings per share
(A ** (US cents)** 3.0 2.5 20.0%
BEE(FER) : Assets (US$'000):
BEE Total assets 144,445 112,611 28.3%
FEE Net assets 99,340 92,265 7.7%
e NIRTTES Cash and bank balances 22,878 14,919 53.3%
* - TFERBAIRBARASETRG ZMETFT  + The earnings per share for 2010 was calculated on the basis of the weighted average
I ER374,438,356 /%51 E - number of 374,438,356 shares in issue.
> ZE-DEGREBMZRARE EHEBETERD  **  The earnings per share for 2010 was calculated on the basis of a total of
415,000,000k 5t & - A E AR EER - EH2 415,000,000 shares in issue after the listing of the Company. The figures above are
Z - the results of simulation calculation on a proforma basis made for reference only.

AEBHRE - ZT——F+_A=+—RHIFEZ
REZEECRERRMEREENRR - 85
EEREBWNOT

AEBWAA745BEET  BEF EFA1598
EETH27.1% °

AEBEMFA12588FTT  REFEMN2.2H
EEITE21.9% °

NEBERERBFA30EN  LEFEM
11.1% > FREARAF AL E DR FREFIR G
R TEHRARAN-_ZE—ZFRHA Tk
THROEEZEELEMB - WAKXQR L
Mk 2 BT D 4258 (81415,000,0000%) 5t &
EFEREF  AAEEHEE-_ZT—F+=A
=+ —HLFEZBRAFERXFIZNM20.0% °

The audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The financial results highlights are as follows:

The Group recorded a revenue of US$74.5 million, representing an
increase of US$15.9 million, or 27.1%, over last year.

The Group recorded a net profit of US$12.5 million, representing an
increase of US$2.2 million, or 21.9%, over last year.

The Group's basic earnings per share was US3.0 cents, representing an
increase of 11.1% over last year. The basic earnings per share growth
is less than the increase of profit for the year. This was primarily due to
the dilution effect of the issue of new shares after the Company’s listing
in May 2010. The Group's earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2011 would have increased by 20.0% when compared to last
year if the earnings per share of last year was calculated based on the
total issued shares of the Company after the listing, i.e. 415,000,000
shares.
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Revenue

(B&8%7T)

(US$ million)

20104 20115
10.9%

|_R:ERCS [ HttRRERE SR

Pafulin Other rheumatic specialty

prescription western pharmaceuticals

N =5 H RRRERRY

Tuoshu Modern Chinese medicine extracts
W %= N Ht#Em

MMF Other pharmaceuticals

8 Annual Report 2011
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2011 FFNHEFRYER
2011 WA HN27.1%

Strong growth in 2H 2011
2011 Revenue up by 27.1%

AN ZFREKENBHEE L
28.8% ' fHABUN A58.3%

BARAPERIYMNEE EF 58.0% @ 14
@R A24.7%

Sales of Pafulin, Tuoshu and MMF in
total up by 28.8%, accounting for
58.3% of the total revenue

Sales of Modern Chinese medicine
extracts up by 58.0%, accounting for
24.7% of the total revenue
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W AR | kS
Net Profit Net profit margin
(B&8%7T) (%)
(US$ million)

17.4% 16.7%

20104 20114

W SREF B SBRE (FERED)
EPS DPS (interim and final)
(L) ()

(US cents) (US cents)

20104 20114

W FRBEE W RBEE W FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(BB=1T) (BB=T) (BE=T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

20104 20114

201 EFFIBEE
20114 F35 H021.9%
R RRGEE

Steady growth in 2011
2011 Net profit up by 21.9%
Net profit margin remained stable

4T k=
BREFIEMI1.1%

20114F R HIfR B A=A 1.03 311
2011 FEH AR B E1.07EM1

Net profit improved
Earnings per share up by 11.1%

2011 interim dividend of US1.03 cents
per share

2011 proposed final dividend of US1.07
cents per share

SEMBEEIRIN12.0% » REBEELE M
48.5%
BEELMN28.3%

FEERMT.T7%
Non-current assets increased by 12.0%
and current assets increased by 48.5%

Total assets increased by 28.3%

Net assets increased by 7.7%
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
("Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report
for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 to all shareholders.

Looking back at 2011, rheumatic specialty prescription western
pharmaceuticals, the core business of the Group, continued to generate
satisfactory sales results. In particular, the three core products, Pafulin,
Tuoshu and MMF, recorded an outstanding result. Among the non-core
businesses, modern Chinese medicine products also achieved significant
growth. In addition, Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”)
in which the Group invested 20% of the equity in late 2010 produced
an excellent operating result and thus contributed in a notable way to
the profit growth for the Group. As at result, the Group’s 2011 revenue
and profit hit record highs. During the year, revenue was US$74.5
million, representing a 27.1% growth over last year. Profit before
taxation was US$15.1 million, representing a 18.5% growth over last
year. The net profit for the year was US$12.5 million, representing a
21.9% growth over last year.

2011 was the first year of implementation of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or “China”)’s “12th Five-Year Plan” (the “Plan”). As
the Chinese government continued to foster economic development
with structural adjustments, the overall economy continued to grow
steadily. 2011 was also the final stage of the first three-year phase of
the new health care reform. The effect of the gradual implementation
of various policies and the continuous investment in reform began
to emerge, resulting in the further expansion and high growth of
the whole pharmaceutical market. The increasing attention from
multinational pharmaceutical companies and the increase in biological
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agents enabled the autoimmune rheumatic market to grow at a faster
pace, which promoted the development of the whole industry and also
presented more opportunities. On the other hand, rising raw material
prices, escalating inflation rate, increase in city construction tax and an
educational tax surcharge together with the price-based competition
when tendering during the pilot stage of the essential drug system
created an extremely difficult and challenging operating environment.

With its long-established brand image in the rheumatology industry and
the accurate assessment of the changing market, coupled with focus on
the whole industrial chain and the timely introduction of market-driven
business initiatives, Lansen recorded a satisfactory sales result in its core
business of rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals.
The rising market demand for natural products drove significant growth
in the sale of modern Chinese medicine for the Group. Benefiting
from the growing market demand for contrast agents and an increase
in exports, the sales and net profit of Starry recorded a substantial
increase. The returns from the Group’s core business and the profit
contribution from Starry helped Lansen offset numerous unfavourable
factors and generated a remarkable operating result. Both the revenue
and profit reached record highs.
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By continuing with the implementation of its long-term strategies which
focus on the autoimmune rheumatic market and establishing a complete
product chain, Lansen made solid strides forward. The Company began
construction of a new quality control and research and development
engineering centre. The expansion of the production facilities for Pafulin
and the production line for bulk pharmaceutical extraction were also
in progress. Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited (“Bozhou Lansen”)
was established in Bozhou, Anhui Province as planned. On the other
hand, Lansen actively engaged in new product development. Products
under development are on schedule and they are expected to be
launched progressively to the market in the coming years. In addition,
Lansen strengthened cooperation with both domestic and overseas
pharmaceutical enterprises and reached an exclusive agreement with
Shanghai Ethypharm Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd and Ethypharm SA during
the year. Under the agreement, Lansen has been granted the exclusive
rights for the marketing and distribution of ketoprofen/omeprazole
slow-release capsules in the PRC. Lansen was also appointed by
Shanghai Jahwa United Company Limited as an exclusive distributor for
all of its special skin care products under the “Yuzhe” brand through
nationwide hospital channels. The above measures provided Lansen
with a solid foundation for future development.

Looking forward to 2012, following the progressive implementation of
the Plan by the State, China’s economy will grow steadily with domestic
consumption as an increasing driver for economic growth. Following
the entry into the middle stage of the new health care reform, the
government'’s investment will stimulate a continuous expansion of
the pharmaceutical market and people’s spending on health care will
rise. The demands for drugs for “rich man’s ilinesses” and chronic
diseases will accelerate thanks to the rising aging population and
disease spectrum changes, all contributing to stable growth of the
pharmaceutical market.
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On 19 January 2012, the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology released the “12th Five-Year Development Plan for
Pharmaceutical Industry”, aiming at speeding up the structural
adjustment, transformation and upgrade of the pharmaceutical industry,
fostering the development of biomedical industry and promoting
the growth of the pharmaceutical industry. On 2 February 2012, the
Ministry of Health issued “Main Tasks for Health in 2012", with a focus
on establishing a comprehensive basic health care system, consolidating
and improving the national essential drug system and exploring the
potential arising from features and competitive advantages of Chinese
medicine. The release of a number of favourable policies shows the
government’s commitment to regulating and reshaping the industria
chain of the pharmaceutical industry. A variety of new measures
in health care reform to promote innovation will persist. The rising
protection level of medical insurance and funds spent per capita instead
of the number of insured will become the major driver affecting medical
insurance expenditure. The tender system as a result of the expansion
of the essential drugs market will change from a price-based system to
a quality-based one. Prices of Chinese herbs have begun to stabilise.
Complexity of reform and uncertainty of policies will also increase. Amid
the structural adjustment and industrial upgrade, the consolidation and
competition in the pharmaceutical industry will intensify, presenting
both opportunities and challenges.

2011.11.27 &%
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Lansen will continue to focus on its core business of autoimmune
rheumatic diseases to further consolidate its leading position in the
disease modifying anti-rheumatic drugs (“DMARDs") market and
to diversify its business into other areas of autoimmune rheumatic
diseases. We believe that, in view of Lansen’s unique position with
specialisation in autoimmune rheumatic diseases and its product
features, including brand recognition and an experienced management
team, and within the context of the new health care reform, we possess
numerous competitive advantages over others and are in a better
position to capture the opportunities arising from the expansion of
the pharmaceutical industry in China. The Group will also implement
a series of proactive measures to consolidate and expand its position.
The measures include the enhancement of cooperation with rheumatic
associations, dermatological associations and the relevant specialists,
further expansion into the second- and third-tier markets and the
dermatological medicine sector, continuous commitment to the
various foundations with an aim to increase the number of specialists
and initiate new and sophisticated research in the field, expansion in
educational programmes for patients, continuous extension of our
brand recognition, development of sales channels to secure stable
growth, in order to create a satisfactory sales result.

Lansen is also concerned about the development of its non-core
business. Following the wide acceptance and global recognition
of the concept of natural products and the Chinese government’s
effort to enhance and protect the heritage of Chinese medicines, the
prospect of modern Chinese medicine business is promising. Facing the
enormous potential of grass-root market and with the consolidation and
improvement of the essential drug system, the sales growth of essential
drugs will accelerate. As a result, the Group’s generic drug business will
benefit from the above factors.

[20%]
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Meanwhile, Lansen will accelerate the construction of a new quality
control and research and development engineering centre and the
expansion of the production facilities for Pafulin and production
line for bulk pharmaceutical extraction in order to create a more
satisfactory operating environment. Bozhou Lansen has commenced
operation to create a complete industrial chain for Pafulin, improve
the quality standard of products and further enhance its raw material
competitiveness through cooperation and acquisitions. By optimising
and improving product mix, capitalising on the economies of scale,
implementing strict cost control and increasing operational efficiency,
recruiting of more sales staff, implementing a series of management
measures together with the overall development strategy, the Group
will turn the growth of sales into profit and create strong performance
returns for shareholders.

In addition, Lansen will continue to increase its product pipeline,
manage the products under development, establish new projects in
line with rising market demand and speed up the launch of competitive
and profitable autoimmune rheumatic pharmaceuticals. The Group
will continue to seek opportunities to acquire target companies and
introduce overseas and domestic products with market potential,
capitalise and consolidate its leading position in the DMARDs market,
extend its coverage to other parts of the rheumatic drug market and
selectively enter other autoimmune disease related drug markets.

Looking forward, the Group believes that Lansen’s current leading
position in a niche market and leading edge brand name, including the
possession of a reserve of products for short, medium and long-term
combined with the accumulated experience of the management team,
will give Lansen an advantage in hedging against risks in the midst of
the new health care reform, capturing new opportunities arising from
environmental change and finally in creating an exceptional result to
repay shareholders for their support.

On behalf of the Company, | take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to investors for their trust and support, and to our board
members, management and staff for their efforts and contribution to
the Group in 2011.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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Business Review

In 2011, China’s overall economy maintained steady growth. Under the
new health care reform, the pharmaceutical industry continued its rapid
growth. Meanwhile, the National Development and Reform Commission
(the "NDRC") issued two notices adjusting the maximum retail price
of certain pharmaceuticals during the year. These actions reaffirmed
the implementation of the price management reform policies. Also, to
control the unreasonable increase in medical expenses and to reduce
the burden on patients, the NDRC and the Ministry of Health issued the
“Pilot Reform Notice on Determination of Fees by Disease Categories”
during the year to serve as a guideline for pilot reform across the nation.
Thus far, none of Lansen’s products have been subject to any of the
price adjustments mentioned above, and the impact of these price
control policies on the autoimmune rheumatic market was relatively
small compared to other pharmaceutical market sectors.

Given Lansen’s well-positioned and highly specialised rheumatology
product portfolio, the adverse impact caused by the current price reform
has been effectively reduced. In addition, with its well-established
reputation and brand recognition, Lansen also continued to benefit from
the on-going industry growth. In the second half of the year, with the
gradual acceptance of the various medical reform policies by the end-
user market, clinical demand increased. Lansen started to benefit from
the marketing and promotion strategies directed toward new markets
and at the same time, its modern Chinese medicine business achieved
a breakthrough in growth in part thanks to our long-term commitment
to this segment. As a result, sales result of the Group for the year hit
record highs. In 2011, the Company recorded a revenue of US$74.5
million, representing an increase of 27.1% over last year.

The upward trend of Chinese herbs prices started to become stable and
slightly reversed at the end of the year, but still represented a significant
increase as compared to last year. In spite of our accurate assessment
of the market together with reasonable allocation of capital to increase
our raw material reserves, the Group still could not completely offset
the impact of rising raw material prices on profit. Moreover, full
implementation of the city construction tax and an educational tax
surcharge for foreign-invested enterprises in 2011 also affected the
profitability of the Group. Nonetheless, strong sales growth, further
enhancement in effective management and a notable profit contribution
from Starry offset the impact of these unfavourable factors, leading to
the net profit for the year hitting a new high. In 2011, the Company
recorded a net profit of US$12.5 million, representing a 21.9% growth
over last year.
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Thanks to the efforts of both management and staff, the Group
achieved an excellent result again in 2011 with a growth in revenue and
profit based on the following:

The three core rheumatic specialty prescription western
pharmaceuticals of the Company provided satisfactory sales
growth. 2009 to 2011 was the first three-years of the new health
care reform. It started from “low levels and wide coverage” with basic
medical insurance coverage to 1.3 billion people as one of the key
objectives. The expansion effect of the “national health care insurance
system” drove high growth in the pharmaceutical industry. With the
gradual acceptance and implementation of the new health care reform
policies by the end-user market, the unfavourable factors affecting the
performance of the Group's core business during the first half of the
year started to diminish.

Benefiting from the improvement of the operating environment due
to the implementation of the above new health care reform policies,
Lansen proactively enlarged the market share of Pafulin in the second-
and third-tier cities and achieved some success in the treatment of
dermatological diseases, coupled with the more competitive pricing of
Tuoshu and the accurate product positioning of MMF, which helped
lead Lansen’s annual results to reach record highs due to the accelerated
sales of its three core products in the second half of the year. During
the year, the sales of the three core products reached US$43.4 million
(58.3% of the total turnover), representing a 28.8% growth over last
year. The sales in the second half of the year even resulted in a 34.8%
growth when compared with those of the first half. Of which, the
annual sales of Pafulin, Tuoshu and MMF amounted to US$27.6 million,
US$13.7 million and US$2.1 million, representing an annual growth
of 20.4%, 32.6% and 343.2% respectively. The sales of Pafulin and
Tuoshu in the second half of the year increased by 33.1% and 28.1%
respectively as compared to the first half. In particular, MMF, a new
product launched last year, recorded a significant growth in sales,
demonstrating its future potential.

A breakthrough in the sales of modern Chinese medicine, a non-
core business. Benefiting from the continuous rising demand for
natural products and the government’s efforts to protect and promote
the Chinese medicine market, this market developed rapidly in 2011.
Lansen’s long-standing commitment and continuous efforts contributed
to a breakthrough in sales in this sector. In 2011, the revenue from
modern Chinese medicine of Lansen was US$18.4 million, representing
a 58.0% growth over last year and an increase from 19.8% to 24.7% as
a share of total turnover, and an increase of 76.0% in the second half
of the year over the first half of the year.
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The sound results from Starry yielded a fruitful investment
return. Starry, whose 20% equity interest was successfully acquired
by the Group in November 2010, achieved an impressive operating
result during the year. Benefiting from the growing market demand in
China and the increased exports, the contrast agents of Starry achieved
not only satisfactory sales growth, but also a substantial increase in
the gross profit. As a result, Starry contributed net profit after tax of
approximately US$1.9 million during the year, and became a major
driver of profit growth for the Group.

The above factors contributed to the Group’s attractive results during
the year.

Outlook

As the PRC government continues to pursue various effective measures,
the Group believes that, from the macro-perspective, the overall
economic development will remain stable. However, uncertainties
such as inflation and increases in raw material prices will lead to an
unfavourable operating environment. From the micro-perspective,
although the pharmaceutical industry will continue to grow steadily
and favourable policies will be launched successively, the new policies
and regulations under the health care reform will still exert pressure
on pharmaceutical enterprises. Despite the limited effects on the
rheumatology market in the short run, it is necessary for us to stay alert
in the medium- to long-term. Management will closely monitor the
further development of macro-economy and health care reform policies
while adopting proactive initiatives to make effective use of the policies
and to minimize the adverse impacts.

Strategically, the Group will continue to focus on the development
of core rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals in
the coming year, and explore entry into the market for other immune
diseases related drugs. The Group will also diversify and optimise its
product portfolio to enhance its competitive edge through acquisitions,
agency arrangements and research and development. Management is
confident that by proactively adopting a series of initiatives, both the
core and non-core businesses of the Group will continue to maintain
a sustainable growth in the future. Intensifying consolidation and
competition in the pharmaceutical industry as well as the active launch
of products by overseas pharmaceutical companies into the China
market will provide Lansen with more opportunities to select suitable
companies for cooperation and medical products for acquisition, which
will generate enhanced results for the Group.
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Financial Review

In 2011, Lansen continued to maintain its market competitiveness
and recorded a satisfactory result, with a revenue of US$74.5 million,
representing a growth of 27.1% over last year and a net profit of
US$12.5 million, representing a growth of 21.9% over last year.

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$74.5 million (2010: US$58.6
million) for the year ended 31 December 2011, representing an increase
of 27.1% over last year. For the year ended 31 December 2011,
revenue from rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals
amounted to US$49.1 million (2010: US$40.6 million), representing
an increase of 21.1% over last year, while revenue from other
pharmaceuticals amounted to US$25.3 million (2010: US$18.0 million),
representing an increase of 40.5% over last year.

The increase in the Group’s revenue during the year was mainly
attributable to: (1) stable growth in income from its two core rheumatic
specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals, Pafulin and Tuoshu; (2)
the fast growth of MMF, an agency product launched last year; and (3)
sustained development of modern Chinese medicine business.

Following further implementation of the new health care reform by
the Chinese government, the coverage of medical insurance is rising,
which will promote further expansion and persistent growth of the
pharmaceutical market. The Group continues to develop its sales and
distribution network in second- and third-tier cities and strengthen
the close cooperation with rheumatic associations and specialists.
This resulted in the stable growth of the Group’s rheumatic specialty
prescription products. The revenue for Pafulin amounted to US$27.6
million (2010: US$22.9 million), representing an increase of 20.4%
over last year, accounting for 37.1% of total revenue of the Group.
The revenue for Tuoshu amounted to US$13.7 million (2010: US$10.3
million), representing an increase of 32.6% over last year, accounting
for 18.4% of total revenue of the Group.

Benefiting from the rising demand for natural products and the
government’s efforts to protect and promote Chinese medicines, the
modern Chinese medicine market developed rapidly in 2011. Revenue
for modern Chinese medicine business amounted to US$18.4 million
(2010: US$11.6 million), representing an increase of 58.0% over last
year, accounting for 24.7% of total revenue of the Group.
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Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a gross
profit of US$44.4 million (2010: US$38.4 million), representing an
increase of approximately 15.5% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the overall gross profit margin
of the Group was 59.6% (2010: 65.6%), representing a decrease of
approximately 6.0% over last year. The gross profit margin of rheumatic
specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals was 76.2% (2010:
79.2%), representing a decrease of approximately 3.0% over last year.
The gross profit margin of other pharmaceuticals was 27.4% (2010:
34.8%), representing a decrease of approximately 7.4% over last year.

The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to: (1)
the change in product sales structure, the sales proportion of other
pharmaceuticals which have lower gross profit margin to total Group's
sales increased from 30.8% in 2010 to 34.0% in 2011; (2) the increase
in raw material and packaging material prices as compared to last year,
resulting in an increase in production costs; (3) the imposition of a city
construction tax and an educational tax surcharge by the state resulted
in an increase in the cost of sales, and in return, a decrease in gross
profit margin; and (4) the promulgation of more regulatory requirements
and quality standards by the State Food and Drug Administration lead
to increased production costs as the Group was required to enhance the
quality and production process of certain products.

Other income

Other income, primarily included government grants and interest income
from bank deposits, amounted to US$2.7 million (2010: US$2.0 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2011, representing an increase of
39.2% over last year. The increase was mainly attributable to increased
grants from the local government partly as recognition of the Group's
efforts in developing high-technology pharmaceutical products.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1) promotion
costs through organising seminars, conferences and related expenses;
(2) staff costs; and (3) rental expenses. For the year ended 31 December
2011, selling and distribution expenses amounted to US$24.8 million
(2010: US$20.4 million), representing an increase of 21.4% over last
year.

The Group endeavoured to enhance brand recognition of its two
core products, Pafulin and Tuoshu. During the year, we held various
seminars, actively engaged in patient education, promoted and
explained relevant knowledge of related diseases together with product
usage and function. Management believes that the above promotional
activities will bring long-lasting positive effect to the Group.

Furthermore, the Group launched a new product, MMF, to the market
last year. In order to further enhance the popularity and market
recognition of this product, the Group put more effort into marketing
and promotion during the year. By organising academic conferences
throughout China, doctors and patients were able to have a better
understanding of the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of this
product.

The proportion of selling and distribution expenses to total revenue
of the Group declined from 34.9% in 2010 to 33.3% in 2011. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the growth in operating efficiency
of the Group.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to US$8.7 million (2010: US$7.0 million), representing an
increase of 23.4% over last year. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the expansion of the Group’s scale of operation.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
US$0.5 million (2010: US$0.4 million), representing an increase
of 18.3% over last year. The increase in finance costs was mainly
attributable to the increase in the average bank borrowings for the year.
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Share of post-tax profit of an associate

Share of post-tax profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December
2011 amounted to US$1.9 million (2010: US$0.2 million), representing
an increase of 778.3% over last year. Starry was deemed to be an
associate of the Group following the successful acquisition of its 20%
equity interest in November 2010 by the Group. Its financial results were
thus consolidated into the Group's financial statements by using the
equity accounting method. The substantial increase in the share of post-
tax profit of an associate is mainly due to the fact that only about one
month'’s results were accounted for the year ended 31 December 2010
after the acquisition.

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah obtained the certification as a high technology enterprise
and enjoyed a preferential income tax rate of 15% since 1 January
2010. The Group's income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2011 amounted to US$2.7 million, representing an increase of 4.8%
as compared to US$2.6 million over last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in earnings. The Group's effective income
tax rate was 17.8% (2010: 20.1%).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit or net profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2011 grew by 21.9% or US$2.2 million to
US$12.5 million as compared to US$10.2 million over last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorts to external financing including both long-term and short-term
bank borrowings from time to time when the operating cash flow is
insufficient to meet the capital requirements.

The Group's financial position continued to be strong. As at 31
December 2011, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately US$39.0 million (2010: US$37.8 million) and 2.1 (2010:
4.0) respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$15.6 million (2010: US$14.8 million). As at 31
December 2011, the Group had pledged bank deposits of US$7.3
million (2010: US$0.1 million) to secure bank borrowings and bills
payables.
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The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2011 amounted to US$28.4
million (2010: US$10.7 million), of which US$19.2 million is repayable
within 1 year and US$9.2 million is repayable after 1 year but within
5 years (2010: US$3.3 million is repayable within 1 year and US$7.4
million is repayable after 1 year but within 5 years).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio was 5.5%
(2010: nil), calculated by net debt as at 31 December 2011 over total
equity.

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held by the
Group's subsidiaries are denominated in the respective functional
currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2011, certain bank deposits, building and plant,
and prepaid land lease payment in an aggregate carrying amount of
US$16.2 million (2010: US$4.1 million) were pledged to secure banking
facilities and bank borrowings.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the financial statements amounted to US$5.2
million (2010: US$1.5 million).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and disposals
There were no material acquisitions and disposals of any subsidiaries
and associates of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Use of proceeds from Initial Public Offering

On 7 May 2010, the Company was successfully listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The net
proceeds received by the Company from the IPO was approximately
HK$408.3 million (equivalent to approximately US$52.5 million).

The proceeds have been partially applied during the period from the
listing date to 31 December 2011, the use of which was consistent with
the intended use as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
27 April 2010 (the “Prospectus”), namely for product development and
research, funding the acquisition of pharmaceutical companies and/or
purchase of production technologies or product approvals, improving
production capacity, expansion of sales and distribution network and as
general working capital.

Human resources

The Group had over 700 employees as at 31 December 2011. Staff
remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances, medical
insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference to individual
performance and the Company’s results, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees have been maintained at a competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with reference to the relevant labour market and
economic situation. The Group provides career advancement training in
the form of internal courses and workshops for the staff and encourages
the staff to participate in training programmes related to the Group's
business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jun (8E), age 41, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development of our Group. Mr. Xu has
been responsible for the overall management of our Group. Mr. Xu has
over 19 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry through his
working experience in China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (formerly Sanjiu Medical and Pharmaceutical Company Limited)
and its subsidiaries (the “Shenzhen Sanjiu Group”) since 1992. Mr. Xu
joined our Group at the end of 2001. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Xu held various managerial positions, including sales manager, head of
sales department and deputy general manager in a company within the
Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1992 to 2001. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor
of science degree in economics from the Renmin University of China
(PR ARAKE) in 1992 and an executive master degree in business
administration from the China Europe International Business School in
2003.

Mr. LIU Xiao Dong (2|EE5), age 41, is an executive Director of our
Company and the senior vice president of our Group in charge of
operations management. Mr. Liu joined our Group at the end of 2001.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu had been deputy head of the finance
department and director of the auditing office of a company within
the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1992 to 2001. Mr. Liu has over 19
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry through his working
experience in Shenzhen Sanjiu Group since 1992. Mr. Liu obtained his
bachelor’s degree in economics from Wuhan University (EZ X&) in
1992.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 72, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay International
Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-executive director
of Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), a company listed
on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly managing
director of Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt, a US citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in
international management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior
vice president and area general manager for Bank of America located
in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to
the Hong Kong Government’s International Business Committee, and
from 1989 to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s
Advisory Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of
the American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr.
Hunt also served as a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing
Committees of the Stock Exchange from November 2004 to June 2011,
Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Duke University in
1961 and a master’s degree in international affairs from Columbia
University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi (Z=%[E), age 54, is a non-executive Director and deputy
chairman of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January
2010 and is the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive
experience in the banking industry and held various senior management
positions with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee
has been a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining
the CIH Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive
officer of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and half years and
a director of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to that,
Mr. Lee was the managing director and China senior country officer of
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong Management
Committee of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was appointed as an
independent director of Taichung Bank on 22 June 2011. Taichung
Bank is listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Harvard University in 1984.

Mr. TANG Jun ((5E), age 52, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been
working in the business development department, responsible for
exploring investment opportunities in the pharmaceutical industries
for our Group. Currently, Mr. Tang is the vice president and head of
business development of the CIH Group. Mr. Tang is also acting as
chairman for Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo
Liwah"), Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) Company Limited (”Shenzhen
Lansen”) and Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company Limited, and a
director of Xiao Haotian Bio-Engineering Technology Co. Ltd. (“Xiao
Haotian”). Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from
Hangzhou University (/1 A £2) in 1982, a master of philosophy degree
from Beijing Normal University (3t FAT#IAE) in 1986 and a licentiate
degree in law from Lapland University, Finland in 1993.

Ms. TAO Fang Fang (F85555), age 41, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Ms. Tao joined the CIH Group in 2007 and is also acting as
a director of Xian Haotian. Ms. Tao became a professional accountant
and a registered accountant in 1996 and 1998 respectively. Before
being promoted to the position of director of finance department of
a leading pharmaceutical group in China, Ms. Tao worked as financial
controller for a manufacturing company and financial manager for a
marketing and sales company under the control of that group. Ms. Tao
graduated from the department of accounting of Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (/B 48 A E2) in 1992.



BAA B8 GBI B IR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

SZNEREEABRE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BEMBLL 5355 0 BAARAZEHNITES -
ABCHHARMWE  CHEBMRIAEFEES
BHEE  BEHEEREHENZEEEIE -
BT NBATHERREMNBARNESRK - £
ZEH-—NNEFER AR SSHMATE RS
B A NN FRKABTARGFMAZE
FE8  WHZEZN\FRK ALK MBI
HHSTMAEEE - A—NLNANFRL - HK
BRBSTWMERTHRABRAEE LT - LAKA
—NNUFR - BRABBARWERAEE T -
R—NAAME-AMBECHERR - EL+THE
R S Ta BRI R SRR E
F o BERTHN—NAN—FREMmERZE  BE
TREAEERSFIEBEE  TR—ANZFEE
S EREEE -

BAFITES

BREELE 6058 ° RARFRBIIFNTE
F-REER-_TZ-ZFONANAMBRER -
BREEEINEER - AEREER - 1Bl - &5t
Ne  ARMERARTHRER BAESE
2 AREZ  AELE AREELASRETR
EREEEB =T FNER - RELEEEES

RS - RERHFARSIMAGEREE R
BMNEFMAEEREBLMEMKER - Rt

AR T EXERNSERKE : BEBKE
g EAEBRFEXBENIAARERES - K
TEBEREMRGE RIEF e R A B RS
B EREERGEREE - RELERAE
BERARARNITHRER  HERERES
BRARNSMER  TEFEEIKREES
REBMBRENFERE - REER-AN—F
E-NNARNFERBASRBRAERAR (FIMHE
MASRBRERDR) IR - BEBATASRAK
B o R —NWNAREFE_TTEFEEFRT
BIEEBEARAREEATERTE  R_TT
—FE_ZT=FHEERRIT(FE)BRARE
EATEHRAREIENEERLE  R-FF
MEE—_ZThFERIR(FR)BERAREESE
EIsEE R _EENFREETESHAAE
BERKTPEZEE  IN_TTF+_AZEC
ZTNFHUARETEFLRR (KB RDER
NRAEESRHBEE - REER - NERFEX
REBETSER  BESRG R -

Ms. YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca (Eff¥), age 53, is a non-executive
Director of our Company, company secretary of CIH, vice president
and head of asset management of the CIH Group responsible for the
management of the operations of the CIH Group’s invested projects
and is also acting as chairman of Xian Haotian and its subsidiaries. Ms.
Yip is a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") since 1994, a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 1991, and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW") since 2008. Ms. Yip
is also an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators since 1988 and The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries since 1994. Prior to joining the CIH Group in February 1994,
Ms. Yip worked for KPMG as an auditor and tax consultant for 7 years.
Ms. Yip graduated from Lingnan College where she obtained a diploma
in business administration and accounting in 1981 and a honours
diploma in accounting in 1983.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael (FRE24E), age 60, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group
on 9 April 2010. Mr. Chan has over 31 years of external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance experience. Mr. Chan is a fellow of
the HKICPA and The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and
a fellow and specialist in information technology of CPA Australia. Mr.
Chan is also associate or member of the following professional bodies:
The Hong Kong Computer Society, Hong Kong Securities Institute, and
the Life Management Institute. He is also a certified information systems
auditor with the Information Systems Audit and Control Association
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan is the
chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior advisor of
New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and an adjunct professor in
the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited
(formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and
his last position was general manager, compliance. He was the head of
internal audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to
2000, the head of compliance in Greater China, managing director of
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial
controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the
director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of group
compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited
from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond (B} ¥ ), age 63, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on
9 April 2010. Mr. Tang has been in the executive search field since 1985
when he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates.
Mr. Tang was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds
Associates until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr.
Tang was educated in the United States at Tufts University in Boston,
Massachusetts where he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972;
and he graduated with a master’s degree in public health from the Yale
University School of Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr.
Tang has served as a member of non-governmental organisations such
as the Hong Kong Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational
Qualifications.

Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 62, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group on
10 February 2011. Mr. Horlacher has over 30 years' experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical career
with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig Pharma
Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008. Mr. Horlacher was
the chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008 and
was responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in
2008. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of
Invida Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of
Australian Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was
the Asia representative on the board of directors of the International
Federation of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was
appointed regional director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale
Division of Alliance Boots in April 2011. He was also appointed as a
director and chairman of the Board of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Corporation with effect from 21 July 2011. Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Corporation is a joint venture company with Alliance BMP Limited and
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited each holding 50% of
shares. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana Institute in
Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in 1972.

Senior Management

Mr. XIE Hong Wei (#%1&), age 39, is the senior vice president
of sales and general manager of Shenzhen Lansen responsible for
the marketing and management of the Group. Mr. Xie joined our
Group in December 2001 and has over 17 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xie had been
the manager and sales director of the sales and marketing department
of a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1994 to 2001.
Mr. Xie obtained a bachelor’s degree in medical library and information
science from Norman Bethune University of Medical Science (F3k 8 %2
BIRE) in 1994.
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Mr. MUI Chi Hung (#&#), age 45, is the company secretary, chief
financial officer and authorised representative of our Company. Mr. Mui
joined our Group on 15 November 2010. Mr. Mui has over 20 years of
experience in financing, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Mui held various senior positions in different listed groups
and international accounting firms, including PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Far East Consortium Group and Rising Development Group, where he
spent 7 years serving as a financial controller, company secretary and
executive director. Mr. Mui obtained his master’s degree in Professional
Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and
his bachelor’s degree in Management majoring in Accounting from
the University of Lethbridge in Canada in 1992. Mr. Mui is currently
a member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
HKICPA.

Ms. POON Lei Yung (B*I%), age 46, is the senior vice president of
our Group. Ms. Poon joined the CIH Group in December 1997 and
had worked in the business development and finance departments
of the CIH Group and holds several directorships in the subsidiaries
of our Group. Prior to joining the CIH Group, Ms. Poon was the
assistant to president at Bessemer Asia Limited, a subsidiary of a U.S.
based company, Bessemer Holdings LLC. Ms. Poon has over 18 years
of experience with international firms that are specialised in direct
investments in China, and has worked in Hong Kong, Australia and
China. She obtained her master’s degree in business administration
from the University of South Australia in 2000.

Mr. ZHOU Rong (), age 42, is the chief logistics officer of the
Group, a director of Ningbo Liwah and the general manager of Ningbo
Liwah Plant Extraction Technology Limited (“Liwah Zhiti”) in charge of
logistic related matters of the Group and operation and management of
Liwah Zhiti. Mr. Zhou joined our Group in December 2001 and has over
20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhou was employed by a company within the Shenzhen
Sanjiu Group from 1991 to 2001. Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s
degree in heating, ventilation and air-conditioning engineering from
Shenyang Architectural and Civil Engineering Institute (ZE5 2 TIR2E
) in 1991.

Mr. LU Yu Jiang (8 81’I), age 40, is the chief OTC business officer
of the Group and deputy general manager of Ningbo Liwah in charge
of the OTC business of the Group and operation and management
of Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Lu joined our Group in April 2008 and has over
18 years of experience in industrial management. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Lu had been a director and the financial controller of a
technology group within the Shanshan Group from 1997 to 2008. Mr.
Lu obtained his master’s degree in business administration from the
Southwest Jiaotong University in 2009.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set

out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
53.

An interim dividend of HK8.05 cents (approximately US1.03 cents) per
share amounting to HK$33,408,000 (approximately US$4,293,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK8.28 cents (approximately US1.07 cents) per share to the
shareholders on the register of members on 28 May 2012, amounting
to HK$34,362,000 (approximately US$4,424,000) in aggregate, subject
to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to US$57,108,000, of which approximately
US$4,424,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 38.1% (2010: 36.7%) of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 10.6% (2010: 12.8%).

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group'’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xiao Dong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun

Ms. Tao Fang Fang

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond
Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
(appointed on 10 February 2011)
Mr. Robert Peter Thian
(resigned on 10 February 2011)

In accordance with the article 108 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Xu Jun, Mr. Liu Xiao Dong, Ms. Tao Fang Fang and
Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca will retire by rotation and, be eligible to offer
themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BFENE®T HARDTF D ET

EEHR 545 TEREE BANE DL

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Director Capacity shares held the Company

BrEEAE ErEXmA () 48,830,000 11.77%
Mr. Xu Jun Beneficiary of a trust (note) (F2)
(Long position)

DUBER ST ErEXmA (FE) 48,830,000 11.77%
Mr. Liu Xiao Dong Beneficiary of a trust (note) (F2)
(Long position)

FEEEE EnEEA 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Yi Beneficial owner (&)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt5e 4 EnEEA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (F2)

Annual Report 2011
T ——FFH

(Long position)



BAA B8 GBI B IR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

FERRE
Report of the Directors

MiaE: KMBERQBEEAFEEETEEERERES
R/ JBESENRER, IEEERRZRANS
REANZTATERERER) - HREEERIER
LEEREEEEINZEA  BABSNRAMERRF
FANRMD P EAER -

fR EXFTIREEN R ——F T -A=+—
B BEEEREBE ARNANR R S E AR
EEZE AR - AR ERETHEERE
&5 N B IR DI 5352 {F A T AR S Ef#a
FRE - BRBELEMBETAEFETESFZZN
1REEST RIZAF G AR B R Bt X P (R 2 ok

AN
=

BEROUEER 2L
RERTMAER - ARF] - BRI SRELM
K&~ R R R B A RSB S EM L 2R
K77 BEARRES A EBBEAKRRR IR
B AR kiR 2 7 A MES A -

EERERENP 2R

BEARE - HERAF - RRNEBAR KB
REIREFIN A R AR EEE R L EEEGH
EARRZBEAAK  RERSFAEMEREI
RER

FERR

R-FB——F+-A=1—8 ARAREES
K EGHIFEIB6GFEZ T ERRAMET
SRALWBEABE TESOERIN - U TR
EHEARRBENARRFD BEITRAH AN
Rt s SRR -

Note: Ever Sail Limited, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the benefit of

certain management personnel and employees of the Group and/or their respective
family and/or charity organisation (the “Management Trust”). Mr. Xu Jun and Mr.
Liu Xiao Dong, who are beneficiaries of the Management Trust, are deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Ever Sail Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 December 2011 which was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

BENERT EARD R #LT

REEH s B4 EERHE RAENBE DL

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company

BIZRBIR B Se i R HE (R ED AR 1 Ry fo 209,820,000 50.56%
AT BEEEEE(hE) ) Beneficial interest (FFE)

Cathay International Pharma
Manufacture and Distribution (China)
Limited (“Cl Pharma China")

(Long position)
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Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company
B ZR B =AY R S22 1 RIEEE R 209,820,000 50.56%
BRAR(HREREE]D Interest of a controlled (7))
Cathay International Changchun corporation (Long position)
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical
(China) Limited (“CIC")
R ZR B R A el B B 2 (R ) 1 REEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
BIRAR([BRBEEE4 Y Interest of a controlled (F2)
FflT R EEsE () ) corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Biotechnology &
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited (“Cl
Biotech & Pharma China”)
BIZBIR B EAR AR 1T REEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
EEE-E ) Interest of a controlled (#FE)
Cathay International Pharmaceutical corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIP")
Bl R B A M T A PR A R 1 R AR 209,820,000 50.56%
([ R=EE A M) Interest of a controlled (1F8)
Cathay International Biotech Company corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIB")
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 SEOEBEREES 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIH") Interest of a controlled (HF&)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 I AE R 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIE") Interest of a controlled (F2)
corporation (Long position)
Wu Zhen Tao 3 =2REFARmAR 209,820,000 50.56%
BEFEX A (#FE)
Founder of discretionary (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
iz 4 R¥EERER 48,830,000 11.77%
Cheng Hoo Interest of a controlled (F&)
corporation (Long position)
Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited 4 EmiEm 48,830,000 11.77%
("LPE") Beneficial interest ()
(Long position)
KHERAT 4 EFEA 48,830,000 11.77%
Ever Sail Limited Trustee (FE)
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Notes:

(1) These Shares are held by Cl Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to 18% by
CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned as to 100% by CI
Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in turn wholly owned by CIP.
CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC,
Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH are deemed to be interested in these
Shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Cl Pharma China.

(3) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao for
the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family Trust”). Mr.
Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by CIE.

(4) The entire issued share capital of LPE is held by Ever Sail Limited acting as the
trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Hoo.
Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested in the shares held by LPE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock
Exchange. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of associations or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Financial Summary
A summary of the Group's results and its assets and liabilities is set out
on page 128.

Auditor

Grant Thornton (now known as JBPB & Co.) acted as auditor of the
Company since 1 January 2007. During the year ended 31 December
2010, due to a merger of the businesses of Grant Thornton and BDO
Limited and to practise in the name of BDO Limited, the Company
announced on 26 November 2010 that Grant Thornton resigned as
auditor of the Company and BDO Limited was appointed as auditor of
the Company with effect from 8 December 2010 and up to the date of
this report.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2012
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The Company and the Board are devoted to achieve and maintain the
highest standards of corporate governance as the Board believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding interests of the shareholders and
other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality Board,
effective internal control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency
and accountability to all stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by
the Company.

The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
The management manages the businesses of the Group within the
delegated power and authority given by the Board. The management is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of Board and Board Committee meetings. Draft minutes and written
resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board Committee
members for review and comment for a reasonable period. Final version
of the minutes and written resolutions will be provided for record within
a reasonable time and the signed copies are kept in the Company's
minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary for Directors’
inspection.

As at 31 December 2011 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of two executive Directors, five non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The number of independent
non-executive Directors fulfilled the minimum requirement of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2011. A description
of the Directors is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 25 to 29 and on the Company’s

website.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the Company, to its
best knowledge, considers all the independent non-executive Directors
fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering
the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development
plans, ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable
information by each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations
for the issues raised in the Board meetings. The chief executive
officer is responsible for managing the business of the Company and
implementing policies, business objectives and plans formulated by
the Board, and is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall
operation. The senior management team is responsible for the day-to-
day operations of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive
officer of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2010.
Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2010 except for Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher whose commencement date was 10 February 2011.
All Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the first general meeting after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Xu Jun (an executive Director), Mr. Liu Xiao Dong (an
executive Director), Ms. Tao Fang Fang (an non-executive Director)
and Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca (an non-executive Director) will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in the
forthcoming AGM.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to help ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which
the Group conducts its businesses.
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In December 2011, all the Directors attended an internal seminar on the
amendments to the Listing Rules which take effect on 1 January 2012
and 1 April 2012 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company had not established
a Nomination Committee and had retained the functions with the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee members
from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In considering the
nomination of new Directors, the Remuneration Committee will take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director. The
Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination of
a new Director, pursuant to which (1) an interview will be conducted
with the prospective candidates; and (2) the Remuneration Committee
will consider and, if thought fit, make suitable recommendations to the
Board.

Changes of Directors and Senior Management

The Board has approved (1) the resignation of Mr. Robert Peter Thian
as an independent non-executive Director, member of the Audit
Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee, effective 10
February 2011; (2) the appointment of Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher as an
independent non-executive Director, member of the Audit Committee
and member of the Remuneration Committee, effective 10 February
2011; (3) the appointment of Mr. Mui Chi Hung as the company
secretary, chief financial officer and authorised representative, effective
18 February 2011; and (4) the appointment of Mr. Lu Yu Jiang as chief
OTC business officer of the Group and deputy general manager of
Ningbo Liwah, effective 1 August, 2011.

Subsequent to the year end, in order to comply with the forthcoming
amendments to the Listing Rules which will be effective on 1 April 2012,
there is a change of the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Lee Jin Yi ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
but remains as a member of the committee. And Mr. Tang Chiu Ping,
Raymond has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, both with effect from 29 March 2012.
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Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The
Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2011
with the attendance of each Director as follows:

HESBRE,
BITEBRRH HER
No. of meetings
attended/ Attendance
== Directors No. of meetings held rate
HITES Executive Directors:
IRE R (TTHAER) Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 100%
Edli=3 e Mr. Liu Xiao Dong 5/5 100%
FFITES . Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt5c 4 (/&) Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 5/5 100%
TEEEE(EEFE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 5/5 100%
AE A Mr. Tang Jun 5/5 100%
bR s L Ms. Tao Fang Fang 5/5 100%
EmME L Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 4/5 80%
BIYFHTES . Independent non-executive
Directors:
BRACIE S Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 5/5 100%
BLRR e Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 5/5 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 5/5 100%
(R=—F——F = 1 HEZE) (appointed on 10 February 2011)

Robert Peter Thianst 4 Mr. Robert Peter Thian 0/0 N/A

(R=ZF——F_A+HHT)
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(resigned on 10 February 2011)

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
a Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and
such Director is not counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include the
following:

- developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

- reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- taking responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group’s external
auditors;

- reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- liaising with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitoring changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

- ensuring accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group's shareholders.
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee
shall provide their recommendations to the Board based on their
respective terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such
recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of
reference of these committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan Kee
Huen, Michael currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is expected to meet regularly at least three times
per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include the following:

- oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor and addressing any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

J developing and implementing policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial statements,
annual reports and half-year reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- review the effectiveness of the financial reporting and internal
control systems of the Group.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HIFE %%  The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
BERITTZREH  MEMKEMHFEBRL  December 2011 with the attendance of each member as follows:
= -
HESRRE,
BITERRH HER
No. of meetings
Name of Audit attended/
ERZEEREHSR Committee members No. of meetings held  Attendance rate
FRECIE A (£ /E) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 3/3 100%
(Chairman)
FEEEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 33 100%
ARy Mr. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 2/3 66.67%
R T E Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%
(R-F——F - F+HEZT) (appointed on 10 February 2011)
Robert Peter Thian7t 4 Mr. Robert Peter Thian 0/0 N/A
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(resigned on 10 February 2011)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee had:

reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission to
the Board for approval;

discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group's consolidated financial statements;

reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

reviewed and discussed the internal control report including the
status of implementing recommendations from the previous
report; and

reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least
once per year.

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
and placing such recommendations before the Board concerning
the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors
and senior management from time to time;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

- to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
any applicable law;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HIFE ' HMZE  The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
BEeRITTMALE  MEMKENTEFEERM 31 December 2011 with the attendance of each member as follows:
= -
HESRRE,
BITERRH HER
No. of meetings
Name of Remuneration attended/
FHNEEEREHRSR Committee members No. of meetings held  Attendance rate
TEMAeE(EE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman*) 2/2 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt4t4E Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 1/2 50%
ERRA S o A+ Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond* 2/2 100%
BRECAS SR Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 212 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4= Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 11 100%
(R-—F——F = F+HEST) (appointed on 10 February 2011)
Robert Peter Thianst 4 Mr. Robert Peter Thian 0/1 0%
(R=—ZF——F — A+ HEFFHT) (resigned on 10 February 2011)
* BE-T——F=ZA-t+hAR FTEEEAETBHE  * Effective 29 March 2012, Mr. Lee Jin Yi ceased to be the chairman of the
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Remuneration Committee and Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond has been appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Remuneration
Committee had assessed the performance of the executive Directors
and the senior management, reviewed the remuneration structure/
package of the Directors and the senior management, and made
recommendation to the Board on their remuneration.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of two executive
Directors and three non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Jin Yi currently
serves as the chairman of the Executive Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and financial-
related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium- to long-
term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new business
development plans, and reviewing and approving research and
development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure that the management carries out the directions and
strategies set by the Board.
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HE-_Z—F+-A=+—HIFE ' $i77Z The Executive Committee held eleven meetings during the year ended
BEeBRIT+—re%  MEMKEMTEBN 31 December 2011 with the attendance of each member as follows:
W
HESRRE
BITERRH
No. of meetings
Name of Executive attended/No. of HER
HITEEEREHE Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
TEMAE(FE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) 11/11 100%
RERE Mr. Xu Jun 11/11 100%
BRI A Mr. Liu Xiao Dong 11/11 100%
MRS+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 11/11 100%
MLt Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 10/11 91%
BEREX Accountability and Audit
B #&H R Financial Reporting
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the
Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
51 to 52 in this report.

Auditor's Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group’s auditor
until the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the fees paid/payable to
BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

Bt/ ENER

R E Services rendered Fee paid/payable
F=E7T

Us$'000

ZH R Audit services 148
FEZERTS Non-audit services -
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the Group
and has the responsibility for reviewing its effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets.

With reference to the “Basic Standard for Enterprise Internal Control”
and “Implementation Guidelines for Enterprise Internal Control” ( [{b2
MEPEIEARE | & [{ERAFMEHEAES]] ), the Company has
performed internal control reviews covering all the key controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Also, management has analysed the control environment and
risk assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes conducting interviews
with relevant management and staff members, reviewing relevant
documentation of the internal control system and evaluating findings
on any deficiencies in the design of the internal controls and developing
recommendations for improvement, where appropriate.

The management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting
to the Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information
supplied, coupled with its own observations and with the assistance
of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the
Group'’s operations and business. The Board will continue to ensure
that appropriate review of the systems and procedures is being carried
out by the management from time to time to maintain a high standard
of internal control and will make appropriate changes to the internal
control system, if necessary.

Company Secretary

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Rules which will be effective
1 April 2012, our Company Secretary shall take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year thereafter.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;

- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites; and

- the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, the management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange the Chairman of the Board and the respective
chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the AGM to
exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

At the 2011 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
the authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares were proposed and all the resolutions were conducted by poll
and approved by the shareholders. The results of the voting by poll were
declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months from the
said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the
Company in an AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong

Please contract our Company Secretary at:

By phone : (852) 2828 9285

By post : Suite 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail : ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contract our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone : (86) 755 2532 3050

By post : Room 1804, Tower D, KK100, 139 Hongbao Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, PRC
(Post code 518001)

By e-mail : ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 127, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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2011 2010
BfaE FER F=T
Notes US$'000 US$'000
WA Revenue 7 74,475 58,607
THERA Cost of sales (30,088) (20,174)
EX Gross profit 44,387 38,433
E A Other income 7 2,745 1,972
HE DM Selling and distribution expenses (24,796) (20,429)
THAX Administrative expenses (8,670) (7,024)
BREEE R Profit from operations 9 13,666 12,952
BA RS AR Finance costs 10 (459) (388)
RGBS N TR FIZ%F]  Share of post-tax profit of an associate 1,941 221
BRFr S AT R Profit before income tax 15,148 12,785
FrERiE Income tax expense 12 (2,695) (2,572)
FERF Profit for the year 12,453 10,213
Hib 2wl Other comprehensive income
BERINEREE 2 Exchange differences arising on
PE N =58 translation of foreign operations 4,767 1,600
FEEMEERE Other comprehensive income for
(I F418) the year, net of tax 4,767 1,600
FEXHKREHE Total comprehensive income for
the year 17,220 11,813
RN TEE AELER Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 13 12,453 10,213
AATEBAEGEE Total comprehensive income
WA attributable to owners of
the Company 17,220 11,813
SREN-EK Earnings per share — Basic 15 3.0 cents =1l 2.7 centsZEAll
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2011 2010
BfaE FERx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB MERE Property, plant and equipment 17 22,827 19,797
B+ S FOE Prepaid land lease payment 18 2,476 2,413
mEE Intangible assets 19 9,907 8,862
Bk Goodwill 20 6,824 6,824
KB AR 2 Interest in an associate 21 27,684 24,380
69,718 62,276
REBEE Current assets
YNy Inventories 22 9,576 6,079
B 5 hEMENFIA Trade and other receivables 23 42,216 29,283
yafT+ AR E A Prepaid land lease payment 18 57 54
BEIRIRITIFK Pledged bank deposits 24 7,286 92
RekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 15,592 14,827
74,727 50,335
BmEE Total assets 144,445 112,611
EankaE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEXK#E Capital and reserves
AAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
P& Share capital 25 4,150 4,150
17 % (B Share premium 26 58,330 68,475
4N o 17 Foreign exchange reserve 9,154 4387
SR Statutory reserve 3,986 1,311
RERE Retained profits 23,720 13,942
R Total equity 99,340 92,265
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—E——F —E—FF
2011 2010
MI5E FERx FET
Notes US$'000 Us$'000

kRBEE Non-current liabilities
Be Borrowings 27 9,157 7,390
BEFIRRE Deferred tax liabilities 28 181 394
9,338 7,784

REBAE Current liabilities

P Borrowings 27 19,226 3,303
mEFHIEAE Current tax liabilities 1,303 1,147
B 5 NEMERTIE Trade and other payables 29 15,238 8,112
35,767 12,562
HBERE Total liabilities 45,105 20,346
BERKREE Total equity and liabilities 144,445 112,611
REBEEZFE Net current assets 38,960 37,773
HWEERRBARS Total assets less current liabilities 108,678 100,049

FES3ENTEMUBEMERER T ——F=A
“thBESESIEREETE  WHATA
TREES

EZE
Director
#®hE
XU Jun

The financial statements on pages 53 to 127 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2012 and

are signed on its behalf by:

EE
Director

BIBER
LIU Xiao Dong
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2011 2010
5T FEx FET
Notes US$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
N GIEINGIP T Interest in a subsidiary 16 25,020 25,020
REBEE Current assets
FEUR A B A B FRIB Amount due from a subsidiary 16 36,358 46,885
SN O] Prepayments 23 29 29
ReERREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 24 17 16
36,404 46,930
BMEE Total assets 61,424 71,950
EzkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEARR#E Capital and reserves
AAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
R Share capital 25 4,150 4,150
&t s B Share premium 26 58,330 68,475
Z:tEE Accumulated losses 26 (1,222) (797)
R Total equity 61,258 71,828
REBEE Current liabilities
fEE R IE Accruals 29 166 122
FER=R Total liabilities 166 122
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 61,424 71,950
REBEEFE Net current assets 36,238 46,808
BEERRBARG Total assets less current liabilities 61,258 71,828
EEa Ea
Director Director
®rE 2R
XU Jun LIU Xiao Dong
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2011 2010
FER F=
Us$'000 Us$'000
RELEEBNEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
B P15 A0 A i 1) Profit before income tax 15,148 12,785
R Adjustments for:
BRI KA Finance costs recognised 459 388
FBUA Interest income (204) (109)
FE(R &R B HIBR T 14 5 T Share of post-tax profits of an associate (1,941) (221)
2 ZRENGRIBERERE Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 85 153
H th GBI E Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
(#o) other receivables 9 (440)
W - WEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,291 1,050
A £ b FE & TR B Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payment 61 59
HEWE - BE REEEE Losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 9 20
& ERE Write off of intangible assets 128 51
R EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 285 -
MREFERERE (=) Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
obsolete inventories 9 (26)
BB EENR 2 K EHF Operating profit before working capital
changes 15,339 13,710
FEHm Increase in inventories (3,112) (2,083)
B 5 N H A FEUGRIAIE N Increase in trade and other receivables (11,624) (7,483)
B 5 I H e FRIBIG I Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other
OB payables 6,537 (2,292)
WEELTZHE Cash generated from operations 7,140 1,852
BERFE Interest paid (522) (432)
B TSR Income tax paid (2,752) (1,683)
maTEES S (BTH) 2% Net cash generated from/(used in)
JFER operating activities 3,866 (263)
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2011 2010
FErR F=
Us$'000 Us$'000
RETHEEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BRI TR (IL0) R (Increase)/Decrease in pledged bank
deposits (7,016) 733
BEME - W= MERE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,192) (3,368)
BEELEE Purchases of intangible assets (982) (1,015)
HEME - BEMREMS Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
FIE and equipment 6 16
N ey Acquisition of interests in an associate - (23,954)
MEENEEE Capital contribution to an associate (399) -
WOERES & A B IRE Dividend received from an associate 359 -
BUFE Interest received 204 109
&L BT %) FEE Net cash used in investing activities (11,020) (27,479)
REMETBHZREHE Cash flows from financing activities
BEEATSIE Proceeds from borrowings 22,194 17,473
BiREBRIAE Repayments of borrowings (4,875) (26,374)
BT D TS 5UE Proceeds from issue of shares - 57,721
BOIRGEFIEEARNER Expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of shares - (4,726)
FEU RN R R B AR Movements in amounts due from/to fellow
RIBEE subsidiaries - (311)
BRRE Dividend paid (10,145) (5,390)
BE B ELEC B2 FE Net cash generated from financing activities 7,174 38,393
ReRRSEFEY 2 FEN Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 20 10,651
FURSREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 14,827 4,055
(e SR ) 2 B2 Effects of exchange rate changes 745 121
ERAEREASEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 15,592 14,827

Annual Report 2011
T ——FFH



B4 B B

2R AR AT

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

T_”_ \

/\‘/T\

2R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ——F+=HA=+—HILEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2011

B BROEE EFRG  NERE  EZERE  REEAN mrEs
Foreign
Share Share  Treasury exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
TET TEr FEr TEr TEr F=r TEr
Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$ 000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
HE-Z-TH+=H Yearended 31 December 2010
=t-ALEE
R-ZT—ZF—F—H Balanceat 1 January 2010
ek 29,491 14 (6,605) 2,787 704 3,565 29,956
AEBEAMELE Arising on group reorganisation (26,491) 22,006 4,485 - - -
BE1THE I AR BN AR 7 Issue of earn-out shares - - 2,120 - - - 2,120
HEHHARE Write off of contingent consideration - - - - - 771 771
BTl Issue of shares 1,150 56,571 - - - - 57,721
BITRIMPTEAMER  Expenses incurred in connection with
the issue of shares - (4,726) - - - - (4,726)
ZT-TFEHRIRE 2010 special dividend
(F5E14) (note 14) - (5,390) - - - - (5,390)
BB NETRS Transactions with owners (25341) 68,461 6,605 - - 771 50,496
FREHM Profit for the year - - - - - 10,213 10,213
HEipzmikz Other comprehensive income - - - 1,600 - - 1,600
FREEBREE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,600 - 10,213 11,813
EEEETRE Appropriations to statutory reserve - - - - 607 (607) -
R-F—ZFF+-A Balance at 31 December 2010
=t+—B#&H 4,150 68,475 - 4,387 1,311 13,942 92,265
HEZ-Z——%+=H Yearended 31 December 2011
_‘l' ALFE
—F——%—F—H Balanceat 1 January 2011
%ﬁ 73 4,150 68,475 - 4,387 1,311 13,942 92,265
RE(FiE14) Dividends (note 14) - (10,145) - - - - (10,145)
HEFANETRS Transactions with owners - (10,145) - - - - (10,145)
ERGEF Profit for the year - - - - - 12453 12,453
Hih 2 HEU Other comprehensive income - - - 4,767 - - 4,767
FAZARRAEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4,767 - 12,453 17,220
B LTERE Appropriations to statutory reserve - - - - 2,675 (2,675) -
T**¢+ A Balance at 31 December 2011
:+ =F 4,150 58,330 - 9,154 3,986 23,720 99,340
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Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands
on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company's registered
office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities
of the Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). There were no significant changes in the Group’s
operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose shares
are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors consider
the ultimate holding company to be Cathay International
Enterprises Limited.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2012.
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Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure
of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the Group on 21 April 2010.
Details of the Group Reorganisation are more fully described in
the paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the prospectus
of the Company dated 27 April 2010 (the “Prospectus”). The
Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation was regarded as
a continuing entity and, accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared using the principles of merger
accounting. The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2010 had been prepared on the basis as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the year.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies set out below. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in United
States Dollars (“US$"”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in compliance
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Group’s management to exercise judgement
in applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas where
significant judgements and estimates have been made in
preparing the consolidated financial statements and their effect
are disclosed in note 6.
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Application of New and Revised IFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised standards and interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs")
issued by the IASB.

IFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2010

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Right Issues

IFRIC — Interpretation 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

IFRIC — Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new and revised
IFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 24 (Revised) - Related Party Disclosures

IAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related party and clarifies
its meaning. This may result in changes to those parties who are
identified as being related parties of the reporting entity. The
Group has revised its accounting policy for the identification of its
related parties and has reassessed counterparties of transactions
in accordance with the revised definition. The reassessment
did not result in new related parties being identified. Related
parties identified in prior years remain unchanged under the
new accounting policy and the Group concluded that the revised
definition does not have any material impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures in the current and previous years.

IAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified disclosure requirements
applicable to related party transactions where the Group and
the counterparty are under the common control, joint control
or significant influence of a government, government agency or
similar body. These new disclosures are not relevant to the Group
because the Group is not a government related entity.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued, but are not yet effective in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 1

Amendments to IFRS 7

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13

Amendments to IAS 1
(Revised)

Amendments to IAS 12

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to 1AS 32

IFRIC — Interpretation 20

Disclosures — Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters!

Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities*

Financial Instrumentsé

Consolidated Financial Statements®

Joint Arrangements#

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities#

Fair Value Measurement#

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements#

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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Application of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

Information on new and revised IFRSs that are expected to affect
the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase | of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace I1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. This
aims to improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option (“FVQO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes
in credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
("OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented
in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have been
designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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3.

Application of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of
all investee entities. An investor has control when it has power
over the investee (whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the investee and
the ability to use the power over the investee to affect those
returns. IFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment
of control. For example, the standard introduces the concept of
“de facto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights in
circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential voting
rights are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether
an investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act
on behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its decision making
authority. The implementation of IFRS 10 may result in changes
in those entities which are regarded as being controlled by the
Group and are therefore consolidated in the financial statements.
The accounting requirements in the existing IAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward unchanged.
IFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provision.

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on the
reporting entity’s financial statements.

The directors are in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new and revised IFRSs and so far
concluded that the application of these new and revised IFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Changes in Accounting Estimates

In previous years, technical know-how which mainly represents
techniques and formulae acquired for the development and
production of oral disintegrating tablets, was regarded as having
indefinite useful life when it was acquired.

The Group was authorised to use the patents without
any consideration during the course of production of oral
disintegrating tablets pursuant to technology transfer agreements
entered into by Tianjin Longbai Biological Engineering and
Technology Company Limited (“Tianjin Longbai”) and Ningbo
Lansen Pharma Technology Company Limited dated 1 November
2005, the confirmation letter dated 1 March 2009 issued by
Tianjin Longbai to Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Ningbo Liwah") and the supplementary technology transfer
agreement entered into by Tianjin Longbai and Ningbo Liwah
dated 13 June 2011. The patents had legal lives of twenty years
but are renewable at a minimal cost. Tianjin Longbai intended to
renew the patent continuously and evidence supports its ability to
do so. An analysis of product life cycle studies and market trends
provided evidence that the products would generate net cash
inflows for the Group for an indefinite period.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed the
carrying amount of the technical know-how to determine whether
there is any indication for impairment. For the purposes of the
impairment testing, the Group had performed a discounted cash
flow projection internally, using weighted average cost of capital
relevant to the Company as discount rate, to estimate the present
value of recoverable amount of the asset and compare to the
carrying amount of the relevant technical know-how to determine
any need for impairment provision. Since acquisition, there was no
indication of any impairment of technical know-how.

Technical know-how mainly represented the production
technology of oral fast release drugs, are currently applied in
the production of other pharmaceuticals. As a result of the new
health care reform in China, the impact of these policies on the
autoimmune rheumatic market was relatively small compared
to other pharmaceutical sectors. Strategically, the management
decided to focus on its core business of autoimmune rheumatic
diseases and to further consolidate its leading position in the
disease modifying anti-rheumatic drugs market. Based on
this strategic reason, the management engaged an external
independent valuer for the purposes of impairment review solely
on technical know-how.
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Changes in Accounting Estimates (Continued)

The independent valuer had performed an in-depth study on
(1) oral disintegrating tablets product life cycle studies, and (2)
market, competitive and environmental trends. The valuation
report indicated that the economic useful lives of the technical
know-how shall be less than the original estimate. As a result,
the management reconsiders that the useful lives of the acquired
technical know-how are no longer regarded as indefinite. The
technical know-how is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 and amortised over its remaining useful life.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how has been
amortised on a straight-line method over a period of 11 years.
This change in expected useful lives increased the amortisation
charge for the year by approximately US$285,000 and decreased
the carrying amount of the intangible assets for the year by
approximately US$285,000.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses. The results
of the subsidiary are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interest in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate and the entire carrying amount of the
investment is subject to impairment test, by comparing the
carrying amount with its recoverable amount, which is higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by IFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss. If
the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests over the fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date,
after re-assessment.

Annual Report 2011
T ——FFHR

69



70

A& B8 B AR B PR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

B H5 R MRt

Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZZ——F+=HA=+—HILEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2011

5.

TESTHBRME(E)

BE (&)

BB RN ARERDREEEE - BRE
ARME - WEMEENEEYIKEAEH
BN HRBERENN S EEER S
EEBEU(IREELEM]) - BOREHE
MRS EEBMIZFZRE - BB
REURENA] B IR ERRIFURIE ©

PRAEFBRFREEBEREENEEM
5 DEERENREELFEUNTNZY
BFEETHEETRENR - EREELE
BUmA RE SRR ZEMOREE -
ARERER & R0 BB B M EM A
BOEEE RERAZBEUEEENK
EEREERL DB R ZELNHEME
= mENTARERBENEBS AR
7 o MEMRESENERPE TEE -

¥ - WER R
Wk - B BRI (BIERHE R IR
SRR RAETR AR I REE @
T X R E R 2 ) AR AR 2 5
7 86 BR (A (40 ) BIRE -

WE - BELREBORABREEBEER
K% LR B B RS

(£ HEERR BENRREEN DR
AR B %8 B B BE R SRt BB
HERAT G ARBEENREELTER
RBIAE(MER) o WERER D MERE
BRIEHER - PTAEMEERRENEE
MR AERRNER AR

Annual Report 2011
T ——FFH

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
properties under construction) less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. Major categories of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated as follows:

Building and Plant 20-50 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Prepaid land lease payment

Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to
acquire long term interest in the usage of land. The payments are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method over the
lease terms between 48 to 50 years.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. Amortisation commences when the intangible assets
are available for use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually, and where there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit or
loss as they occur. An intangible asset arising from development
expenditure on an individual project is recognised provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use

E or sell it;
o AREBEBRERENERIHERTLE . the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
B demonstrated;
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o AR - M MEMERFFE
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o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

° sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised from the commencement of the commercial production
of the product on straight-line method over the period of its
expected benefit. Capitalised development costs with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have a finite
useful life to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued mount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

Effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including borrowings and trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
in the normal course of business and the use by others of the
Group’s assets yielding interest, net of discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue
is recognised as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and the title
is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,
and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by Group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
it/they operate(s) (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
US$) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the
total rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution
benefit plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets
may be recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred
and are included in current liabilities or current assets as they are
normally of a short term nature.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities as deferred
government grants in the statement of financial position and
are recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member to that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person individual in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associate accounted for using equity
method

o income tax

o finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation
of these financial statements are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment losses/
reversal of impairment losses in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry, have indefinite useful lives as they believe
that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
these intellectual property rights is expected to provide cash flows
and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a period
of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behaviour and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where
estimated useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
or will recognise impairment loss when future cash flows are
less than expectation and fall below the carrying amount of the
intangible assets.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2011,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use, are determined with reference to
the best information available at the end of the reporting date.
Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
operating and growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. As at 31 December 2011, the
carrying amount of intangible assets is US$9,907,000.
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7. WARHEMEKA 7. Revenue and Other Income
AEBRERNHRA(BIREBME L) An analysis of the Group's revenue, which is also the Group's
REMWAZ DT turnover, and other income for the years are as follows:

—E——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FErR FET

US$'000 USs$'000

HEEmBBA Revenue from sales of goods 74,475 58,607
Hgle A Other income

HRITHLEWA Bank interest income 204 109

ISR GEIEA Government grants 2,290 1,859

Hih Others 251 4

2,745 1,972
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The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC
as recognition of the Group’s performance and development of
high-technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received
were not subject to any conditions.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its product types and has two reportable operating
segments as follows:

o Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals;

o Other pharmaceuticals.
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Segment Information (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its business units separately
for the purpose of making decision about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on the results from the reportable segments as explained in
the table below.

N
2011
BERER
BHPEE HibZEm et
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals pharmaceuticals Total
FER FER FER
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
AT 2D EUA Reportable segment revenue
— KRB EINE U A - Revenue from external customers 49,138 25,337 74,475
AT 2HD IR Reportable segment profit 37,438 6,949 44,387
—T-EF
2010
RRER}
Ba 77 PH % HhZEm Ry
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals  pharmaceuticals Total
FET FET FET
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
AT 25 ERA Reportable segment revenue
—REBEINEFHIUA — Revenue from external customers 40,579 18,028 58,607
BT 2D EBEF Reportable segment profit 32,152 6,281 38,433
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Segment Information (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group's key financial figures as presented in the
financial statements as follows:

—E——F —ET-FF

2011 2010

FErx FET

UsS$'000 Us$'000

IR EE Profit or loss

BT 2RO EET Reportable segment profit 44,387 38,433
JE(GE:Z N RIMERTIZ %A Share of post-tax profits of an associate 1,941 221
EbR DB A Other income not allocated 2,745 1,972
Ht RN BRI Other expenses not allocated (33,466) (27,453)
BAFERR AR Finance costs (459) (388)
FT1S 5 Bl ) Profit before income tax 15,148 12,785

AT 2HHWEFIEE D WATR - A
9TE FEREERS RRRR AR
HETE % -

FRN - AEBRAEFHNRR(ZE—F
F o 14%)TyRE HAbBEGR |5 Eh R E—
P -RMER  AEBEZEWFIAEZ
27%(ZF—FF : 23% ) REANZEP o
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Reportable segment profit represents the gross profit by each
segment. This is the measure reported to the executive directors
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

During the year, 12% (2010: 14%) of the Group's revenue was
derived from a single customer in the “other pharmaceutical”
segment. As at the reporting date, 27% (2010: 23%) of the
Group's trade receivables was due from this customer.
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8. SNIER(E 8. Segment Information (Continued)
REEBNWRATIEIDE TR The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:
—E——-F —T-EF
2011 2010
FEx TET
US$’000 US$'000
R (EED) The PRC (domicile) 73,148 57,512
)N Overseas 1,327 1,095
74,475 58,607
EENEMNE U T EE RS AE Geographical location of customers is based on the location at
o RNFARBHESHETHKTHMIEE which the goods are delivered. The Company is an investment
RSN T 0 T AN B B AR b N 4 (T (] 2 holding company incorporated in Cayman Islands where the
& o REBMTELEN TIEEKMANE Group does not have any activities. The Group has the majority of
A DR ERR R HERI EE 8%k its operations and workforce in the PRC and therefore, the PRC is
[ 3R | B8 IR T = AR fE A &= considered as the Group’s country of domicile for the purpose of
BHEERER o the disclosures as required by IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
RREEE  NEBEWREIERE SRk Almost all non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC
FHRRFE o in both years.
BAYETFTEHASTESIREHEDBEESK No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
DEEEER  WITEZIEBER - not regularly provided to the executive directors.
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9. Re&EHEF 9. Profit from Operations
REBRKLE DM IEINER (GTA) T The Group's profit from operations has been arrived at after
TS - charging (crediting):
—E——F —=-ZF
2011 2010
FER F=x
US$'000 Us$'000
ZEEE & Auditor’s remuneration
—ZE RS - Audit service 161 111
— IERZ RS — Non-audit service - 66
M - REMEEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,291 1,050
PREFSRERE Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
(Em) obsolete inventories 9 26)
B S RWGIBE R E R Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 85 153
H IR IE R ERAME, Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
() other receivables 9 (440)
FE 5 a5 558 Net exchange gain (261) (161)
ERAFRZ AT ERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 29,149 19,922
T REFHKLEEE Operating lease charges in respective of
53 land and buildings 479 353
B A Research and development costs 1,019 274
HEME - BE MRE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
&8 equipment 9 20
A EMEE Write off of intangible assets 128 51
FEAS £ 3t FH & FR IR 6 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 61 59
RS A Amortisation of intangible assets 285 -
ETA(BIEESHE) Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—IEKRES - Wages and salaries 6,276 5,568
— ERRHFGEE - Defined contribution plan 416 459
6,692 6,027
10. BAFER(AR 10. Finance Costs
—F——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
BENRERNTEHER 2T Interest on bank borrowings wholly
BHEFME repayable within five years 522 433
S s AERIRZEAR L Less: Interest capitalised included in
& construction in progress (63) (45)
459 388
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11. EENABRESHA TN 11.

B

ENMENTARBESNFHMETRNT

Individuals
Directors’ remuneration

directors of the Company are as follows:

Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to the

e E=H BIRER
e AEMEAN HE L3 et
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees in kind contributions Total
TEx TEx TERn TERn
Uss$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
HE-Z——F Year ended 31 December 2011
+tZA=+—-HLEE
HITES: Executive directors:
"E Xu Jun - 209 15 224
=3 Liu Xiao Dong - 117 12 129
FERITEE : Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
=5 Lee Jin Yi - - _ _
58 Tang Jun - - - _
eyt Tao Fang Fang - - - _
EmE Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - _ _
BUIFMTES - Independent non-executive
directors:
Robert Peter Thian Robert Peter Thian (resigned

(RZE——F as at 10 February 2011)

—A+BEI) 4 - - 1
e Chan Kee Huen, Michael 31 - - 31
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

(RZT—F (appointed as at

ZRTHEEMF) 10 February 2011) 26 - - 26
i Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 29 - - 29

129 326 27 482
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1. EENRBEESHEALINTEM(E 11.

Individuals (Continued)

Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

EEHFM(E) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
e E2M RIRER
e NEYER FHEIER Faa
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees in kind  contributions Total
FTET = FET FET
Us$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
HE2_T—ZTF Year ended 31 December 2010
+-A=Zt+—BLEE
BITES: Executive directors:
(G Xu Jun - 168 14 182
Bl Liu Xiao Dong - 99 11 110
FERTES - Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 29 - - 29
=T Lee Jin Yi - - - _
nE Tang Jun - - - _
B35 7 Tao Fang Fang - - - -
Eme Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - - -
BUIENITES Independent non-executive
directors:
Robert Peter Thian Robert Peter Thian 27 - - 27
FRECIE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 22 - - 22
BIREE Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 22 - - 22
100 267 25 392
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1.

ESNLEBRSHALTHHFMGE 1.

hEBEHAL
hESERHFALTEEARAMEER(=F
—ZF @A) WENFIFIEEN X
MDA - BT =R(ZT—FTF: ZR)K
A LTEFMEFBNT

Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two directors (2010:
two) of the Company, details of whose remuneration are reflected
in the analysis presented above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2010: three) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

—B——F —E-TF

2011 2010

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

e ZENREYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 313 245
RIEAET B R Retirement benefit plans contributions 20 34
ast Total 333 279

XN T EMFEEOALTOHFMER AT
#5

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
individuals fell within the following bands:

—E——F —E—FF

2011 2010

FEx F=ET

Us$'000 Us$'000

Z7128,000% T Nil — US$128,000 3 3

FA - HEESFHR KR TR T
M2 B o

FR - AKEBEINNE TESHEM
hEEHHFMAL  ERIMAREEZM
AXREEERNERSHREE(ZE—F
F )

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or compensation for loss of office during the
year (2010: nil).
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12. Fif8%iRX

HEZZ——F+=HA=+—HILEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2011

12. Income Tax Expense

—E——F —EEF
2011 2010
FErR F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
B HIFTS Current tax
— R ETEH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
(T2 P1SHE) 2,695 2,572

TP BE A M R B A BRIA D IR A R
BRI FUAE R A E AR R
.

BEPBECEMESTEA(DEMERE]D
NMEEHmME - RENBARNRE —=
B25%(ZZF—FF 1 25%) °

Hh—HaEREESREELZFFESR
EEMBRENMBAR - ERER T
—ZFAE G NE25% NREHEK o 5
—EREFERTESHRREENMNE AT
B2 ZF—A-BEZER15%NEE
PRSI EER -

AEE-—BHBARRIEEERE 1R
BEREMEREREMINE R REHR
A RERREREBEFENHGER
BOEEENFERE  AMFERHUEEM
B BER=ZFRFEREEMENR - &
MEBNR - T —=FEFN25%HIRER

% o
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Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which
the Group operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2010: 25%).

One of the subsidiaries operates in Shenzhen Special Economic
Zone and enjoys preferential Enterprise Income Tax rates, its tax
rate will increase gradually to reach the standard rate at 25% in
2012. Another subsidiary has been certified as a high technology
enterprise in the PRC and enjoys a preferential Enterprise Income
Tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2010.

A subsidiary of the Group is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
in accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprise
with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises and is entitled
to full exemption from EIT for two years and a 50% reduction in
the following three years thereafter starting from the first profit
making year after offsetting prior years' tax losses, its tax rate will
reach the standard rate at 25% in 2013.
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12.

13.

Fr&wm< (&)

FAMBRAXEERE 2 ERERPTRE

P BIAT S FIE BRI T

12. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

—F-—F —E-TF
2011 2010
FER F=T
US$'000 US$'000

FTS 5 A1 e ) Profit before income tax 15,148 12,785
RE AN BB EAERAETE Tax on profit at the rates applicable to

MEFTENTIE the jurisdictions concerned 3,117 2,591
AR A S R IS R 2 Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 117 209
FERTURA RN IE 2 Tax effect on non-taxable income - (5)
JEERF L N AR BB FIA)  Tax effect of share of post-tax profits of

Mg E an associate (320) (36)
BB S RI AR EEBA Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

MG E previously not recognised - (12)
HsER Tax exemption (219) (175)
FRBERFX Income expense for the year 2,695 2,572

RABER ABIEEF

KAalA NELERE & 12,453,000
L (ZZF—Z4F : 10,213,000 70) 7 -
425,000% 70 (= —= 4 : E5E797,000
F0) ZBIBE R AR R RER NEE -

13. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of US$12,453,000 (2010: US$10,213,000), a loss of
US$425,000 (2010: a loss of US$797,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.
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14. BRE 14. Dividends
—E——F —EEF
2011 2010
FErR F=T
Us$'000 Us$'000
FRARAA/DIRHRE Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
FR%8.05/8M1(471.03%L) 2011 interim dividend — HK8.05 cents
LZE——FERERE (approximately US1.03 cents)
per share 4,293 _
FR141FZWN 2z =ZE—F4F 2010 final dividend — US1.41 cents
RHEAME B per share 5,852 -
FAH1.80E Mz —F—F4F 2010 special dividend — US1.80 cents
HRIR% S per share - 5,390
10,145 5,390

BRER_ZF-—ZTFHANBRTHRER
AREBEBNEBRER  ARAAER
ZBRRERKBEF/R1B0FEN - 54
5,390,000 7T ©

EERARBRBEE T ——F+ A
=+ —HLFERMRARS TR 28E
W ZE—ZF Bz —ZF+=
A=+ BULEFENREREATR
1.412 1l - £%F5852,000%7T) © A5t
34,362,000 7T (494,424,000 7)) + 1A
FRENREAGHER - FAEE - 2
FRUBENHE RS AERABE -
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Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the general meeting
held on 9 April 2010, the Company declared a dividend of US1.80
cents per share, totalling approximately US$5,390,000 to the then
shareholders.

Final dividend of HK8.28 cents, amounting to HK$34,362,000 in
aggregate (approximately US$4,424,000) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: final dividend of US1.41 cents
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, amounting to
US$5,852,000) per share has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in general meeting. The
proposed final dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the reporting date.
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15.

16.

BRER
EREABFIVIEFARARNRREE AE
{4374 5% | K.415,000,0000% 2 2 17 i% 19
—E-TF  RRASEEHER T
—EF—F—BRERNNEFHE A
374,438,356% )5t & o

RRFEALEEEEERD - HAE2T
ShEFRT) -

15. Earnings Per Share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
415,000,000 shares in issue during the year (2010: weighted
average number of 374,438,356 shares on the assumption that
the Group Reorganisation had been effective on 1 January 2010).

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential dilutive shares during the year.

R Rz s 16. Interest in a Subsidiary
—EB——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FER F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
"E Investments
A TR - REKANME Unlisted shares, at cost 25,020 25,020

BERREHR KB QBB E
33°

Y —FEME AR RAEER 28
FBRRENRER - EFRA - BHAOKRE
BEAQNFERE -

Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are
set out in note 33.

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The directors consider that the carrying
amount of the balance approximates its fair value.
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17. ¥ - BERRE 17. Property, Plant and Equipment
AEH Group
BTRBE B RE RARRE EEIR @t
Building Furniture
and Motor and Construction
plant  Machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total

A A A A e e
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

WZZE-FF—F—H At1lanuary 2010

BR Cost 10,824 4,072 574 769 2,769 19,008
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (768) (778) (298) 213) - (2,057)
REFE Net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
HE-_T-ZF Year ended 31 December 2010

TZAZT-HLEE
FUREFE Opening net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
[R?ﬂ% Exchange adjustment 309 101 8 17 85 520

NE Additions 48 1,003 291 344 1,726 3,412
ﬁ% Depreciation (415) (395) (70) (170) - (1,050)
RE Disposals - (15) (14) 7 - (36)
RhEgIRRER Transfer from construction in progress 3,136 427 45 17 (3,725) -
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 13,134 4415 536 857 855 19,797
RZE-EF At 31 December 2010

tZA=t-A
A Cost 14,340 5,822 855 1,219 855 23,091
Z2itiTE Accumulated depreciation (1,206) (1,407) (319) (362) - (3,294)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,134 4,415 536 857 855 19,797
HE-E——F Year ended 31 December 2011

TZAZT-ALEE
FNEEDFE Opening net carrying amount 13,134 4,415 536 857 855 19,797
i ¥ % Exchange adjustment 682 236 31 49 83 1,081
NE Additions 72 524 212 407 2,040 3,255
e Depreciation (503) (499) (78) (215) - (1,291)
EE Disposals - 3) (6) (6) - (15)
RERTRER Transfer from construction in progress 288 184 - 2 (474) -
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,827
RZE——F At 31 December 2011

+-R=1+-8
AR Cost 15,458 6,517 1,099 1,661 2,504 27,239
23t Accumulated depreciation (1,785) (1,660) (400) (567) - (4.412)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,821
RZZE——F+A=+—H  KEEA As at 31 December 2011, certain properties with a carrying
7,679,00030( —E—F4F : 3,138,000 amount of US$7,679,000 (2010: US$3,138,000) were pledged to
TU)ZETYMEBERIRET Fﬁé{&fﬁfﬂﬁ& secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note 27).

Z B (ffaE27) ©

A IR 2011
100 222l



BB ER AT

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

BRI oL

Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZZ——F+=HA=+—HILEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2011

18. St #bHERIEA

18. Prepaid land lease payment

rEH Group
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FErx FET
US$°000 Us$'000
FEHBIN - AT HH$EFAE © Outside Hong Kong, held on:
—A8FE50F A — Leases between 48 to 50 years 2,533 2,467
W EFARBEEANRD Less: Current portion included in current
B0 assets (57) (54)
FFASERBEEMIERE Non-current portion included in
o non-current assets 2,476 2,413
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FErx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
FEREFE Opening net carrying amount 2,467 2,451
FREHEAY Amortisation charge for the year (61) (59)
e 5 B Exchange adjustment 127 75
FAREEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,533 2,467
REEARE Gross carrying amount 2,810 2,670
RETHESH Accumulated amortisation (277) (203)
IREFE Net carrying amount 2,533 2,467

R-E——F+-_A=+—H EFEHEA
1,271,000 70 ( — & —Z 4 : 833,000
) ZETEN LA EREBECEARITR

BRRITEE 2 M am (HE27) - 27).

As at 31 December 2011, certain prepaid land lease payment with
a carrying amount of US$1,271,000 (2010: US$833,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note

A IR t 2011
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19. BEE

19. Intangible Assets

rEH Group
BROBE BNTEENE %N st
Exclusive
distribution Technical Development
rights know-how costs Total
FEx FET FEL FET
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 us$'000
(BizFa) (PFiF3Eb) (PiF3Ec)
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
MWZZ—FF—F—H At1January 2010
[BEN Cost - 5,938 1,843 7,781
Sty Accumulated amortisation - - (118) (118)
REFE Net carrying amount - 5,938 1,725 7,663
HE_Z-ZF Year ended 31 December 2010
+=ZA=+—-H
HFE
FYEREFE Opening net carrying amount - 5,938 1,725 7,663
e 3, B Exchange adjustment - 182 53 235
NE Additions - 18 997 1,015
EE Disposals - - (51) (51
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount - 6,138 2,724 8,862
RNZE—ZTF At 31 December 2010
+=ZA=+—H
A Cost - 6,138 2,846 8,984
ZETEEY Accumulated amortisation - - (122) (122)
REFE Net carrying amount - 6,138 2,724 8,862
HE-Z——F Year ended 31 December 2011
+-A=1+—8
LFE
FHIREFE Opening net carrying amount - 6,138 2,724 8,862
FE 5 5 Exchange adjustment 4 315 157 476
NE Additions 155 52 775 982
e Amortisation - (285) - (285)
BRE Disposals - - (128) (128)
FERIREFE Closing net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
NZE——F At 31 December 2011
+-A=1+—H
[BEN Cost 159 6,512 3,656 10,327
BN Accumulated amortisation - (292) (128) (420)
RHEHE Net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
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19. BEEE(E

REE(E)
Py -
(@ R-T——F FEERLSEORUEAR @

AR K&Ethypharm SA(#ETE B /% ) E I BR
s o RIEWE - NEBEEIWESRBER
WAErER R SR ([ 556 ) AR BB RIS
A BEEREL BHRARI0F o

BEABRDEERZ  AEEERBERR
REMEEETERKLENERAMEER
M 82 ¥ (4238,000% T (HERHDAR
1,500,0007T) ¢ K1,033,0003 7T (HHE RLA
R#6,500,000C) EAR KRR MmEMREEEE
sk B B O S @ B B TTER R 7o Y
B - HHEONREER RS BARMEARE
(F7530) - BEHEZSHREMBREAL -
IR TA AR o

(b)  HRMEEFMBEREMREEREEORHERN (b)
e R By R BLTT ©

BEFE  RNEEASHAREEEERA
EERERPR  BELERFHNETRE
A TS BT ——FLA—BE &
MHEEABIRE SR+ —FF BN

TEEAR AF M B E S AFERHHMAEM
#9285,000E T RS AFEEFMEENREER
L #9285,000% 70 © Gt st M B KT 4

=

(  FBKATBIERERME P ABELOMH (©
B

EER/UENBERRERTEAFEY
ABFEXNAFERTRARSTENHREL
R R AIR G o iE L A A N — R A
TRAKPRAEAR » AR IR AT AT ©

fis A EE R R BRORUE 2 AR T (B B S 2 U
EMHERS - BREMAFHNABEETS
HEITHESE - WS AR R R AR TTRER
& A PR BUR IR (R F B A E R
ATRERE - R SAEETTRERI -

Notes:

19. Intangible Assets (Continued)
Group (Continued)

In 2011, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement with Shanghai
Ethypharm Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd and Ethypharm SA (collectively referred
to as “Ethypharm”), under which the Group has been granted the exclusive
rights in marketing and distribution of ketoprofen/omeprazole slow-release
capsules (the “Drug”) in the PRC for a period of 10 years from the launch
date of the Drug.

In accordance with the agreement, the Group is required to pay US$238,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,500,000) to Ethypharm on the date
of the grant of the Import Drug License (“IDL") from the State Food and
Drug Administration (“SFDA") and to pay US$1,033,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB6,500,000) for the clinical studies that is required from the
SFDA to apply the IDL application. The consideration of the distribution rights
had been disclosed as commitment at the end of the reporting date (note
30). Up to the date of approval for these consolidated financial statements,
the registration process is still in progress.

Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired for
the development and production of oral disintegrating tablets.

In previous years, technical know-how was considered by the management of
the Group as having indefinite useful life and had not been amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. With effect from 1 July 2011, technical
know-how has been amortised on a straight-line method over a period of 11
years.

This change in expected useful lives increased the amortisation charge for the
year by approximately US$285,000 and decreased the carrying amount of the
intangible assets for the year by approximately US$285,000. The change in
accounting estimates had been disclosed in note 4.

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPR")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPR in pharmaceutical
industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPR are renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are sustainable in the market.

Should the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the assets should
be written down or written off immediately to expense. IPR with indefinite
useful lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at each
financial year end or more frequently if there are indications that IPR with
indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
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19.

20.

BREE(E)

FEM (&)

R-T——%F BEECEHNNBEHRRE
WEEMENRESRE - SRHEEMER
FAREEENER M T ER &R
FEREBILEENWER T BEES
BEHMZISERNELEENOME - A
BABELBLEEREMBEBVEE -
It - B 2B EENEANLEREF A
HEARFENZINITN

19. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Group (Continued)

In 2011, the management had reviewed the disclosure in the
intangible assets note to the financial statements. In order to
provide information that is more relevant to the users of financial
statements and comply with the disclosure requirements for
intangible assets under IAS 38, the management considers
to re-present the note for each class of intangible assets,
distinguishing between internally generated intangible assets
and other intangible assets. Therefore the comparative figures in
the intangible assets note have been re-presented to conform to
current year's presentation.

[EES Goodwiill
TEE Group
—g——f —mom
2011 2010
FEx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
BREE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEBR —_TTRFWREERLENALE
BE(RIDARAR(DRIEAE]D) - %F
RGUNRBEHENK ©

AEERBEREHRABESFETR
BAR  HEDRBREAEAERE &
FIRTHETTRERIF o

RBEASRNS  BERIEE—ERE
ELEM  BERIEXBARENREER
BREMBHAEERNMBAR - L&D
BELEDMHERERE S -
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The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah and Lansen Medicine
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) in 2005. These
transactions have been accounted for under acquisition method of
accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at the end of
each reporting period, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to one CGU, including subsidiaries with principal
activities of manufacturing and trading of rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceutical products which is identical to
the “Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals”
under operating segment.
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20.

21.

B ()

7 e 8 (40)

TR eELENARESENEERH
TEEBRRBRNT

ZREELEBNNAIRESEAERE
BFEEET - ZTEAFERREENES
BEMERRATFNMEEAIGTENRS
METEAAEI10%MWITIRR(ZE—ZF -
10%) ° 20% KB R R D ENEEIBRTE
Bl o FEREENEENEMEZ®BRRIIE
RIRERASRHAOG - EPRERE
RISHE R ENE - BEAMTEEENRZR
TEAEMBATNRBENUNLEREH TS
EEMIEH - BEREMRE  THRHERK
RAEESEEANTRELENEE  BTgE8
BZReELEEMNMNAREERBEK
[0 428 -

FR - ANEEEEERS - mEALERE -

20. Goodwill (Continued)

Group (Continued)
The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 10% (2010:
10%). The growth rate of 20% is based on pharmaceutical
industry growth forecast. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year, management of the Group determines that there
are no impairments in goodwill.

i NI o 21. Interest in an Associate
S S
2011 2010
FEx TFET
Us$’000 Us$'000
LB EFE Share of net assets 9,179 6,815
Ha Goodwill 18,505 17,565
27,684 24,380
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REtE DT 2w (E) 21. Interest in an Associate (Continued)
RZE——FR_E—FTF+_/F=+— As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests in
H - AEEHEBLTES AR the following associate:

REE FriFEm
NCIES S AR AL i B EREEMNLLS EEEK

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of registered capital
Name of entity incorporation held by the Group  Principal activity
AL RIS RER D BR AR AR H 20% HERBENSREE
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical The PRC Production of bulk
Company Limited (“Starry”) pharmaceuticals and
intermediates
REENT 2SR ABIER—_E—FEF Included in the cost of interest in an associate is goodwill of
Wit B R K 7P EE AR WY 729 22 18,505,0003 7T US$18,505,000 (2010: US$17,565,000) arisen on acquisition of
— T T4 : 17,565 000FETT) ° Starry in 2010.
EREAREFREZ NN EERMG T - Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below:

—E——F —E-ZF

2011 2010

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

WEE Total assets 115,042 75,688

Fay=E Total liabilities (67,091) (41,612)

BEFAE Net assets 47,951 34,076

AEEEGEEFE Group's share of net assets 9,179 6,815

WA Revenue 78,542 6,013

F R F Profit for the year 10,662 1,214
REEEERE AR Group's share of post-tax

BrE1&m profit from an associate 1,941 221

Al IR 12011
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22. 78 22. Inventories

rEH Group
—g——% =34
2011 2010
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FR Raw materials 3,840 2,198
& Work-in-progress 1,996 792
BIRK an Finished goods 3,740 3,089
9,576 6,079

2 EFEHEAATE -

23. EZRHMEWFIE

All inventories are stated at cost.

23. Trade and Other Receivables

K& Group
—E——F —ZT-FF
2011 2010
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
B 5 e e Trade receivables 28,665 19,551
B BHIEWRIEREREA  Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (1,993) (1,811)
26,672 17,740
FEW =R Bills receivables 10,438 7,130
B 5 YR E N e =R Trade and bills receivables 37,110 24,870
FB IR K Eth FE Y Rk TE Prepayments and other receivables 5,106 4,413
42,216 29,283
EE2HE B NEmERZBENERE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

EENFERES -

other receivables approximate their fair values.

REBMWBERLTEHOR(ZE—= The Group has a policy of offering an average credit period of 90

F R )MEEMTERF -

days to its customers (2010: 90 days).
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FEM(F)
REFHZAH  REEHR - AEENE
5 UG M B RBENRE DITT

HEZZ——F+=HA=+—HILEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2011

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Based on the invoice date, ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables of the Group as at the end of the reporting date is as
follows:

—EB——F —E-TF

2011 2010

FER F=7T

US$'000 US$'000

90HZMA T 90 days or below 36,144 21,517
91£180H 91-180 days 958 3,164
1812365H 181-365 days 8 189
37,110 24,870

AEEZESERRELHBEEAEE
966,000 L ( —F —ZF : 3,353,000
To) MR B B3RS B iR s EE R
FUREBERTIREE  EERESREH
BYRF - PN B R AL ER o IRIE
BAEKE  AAREERE BAMZS
EHRIELEE  RAGHEENEERE
) MESRIEKAEE T 2ERE - AEE
WERZE SR E EEAR -

AEECBBEYRRENE ZEEFIR
BRI -

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of US$966,000 (2010: US$3,353,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. These relate to a number
of independent customers of whom there is no recent history of
default. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Group’s ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade
receivables is as follows:

—F——F —T-TF

2011 2010

FEx TET

US$'000 US$'000

BHI1ZE90H Past due over 1-90 days 958 3,164
#EA91%275H Past due over 91-275 days 8 189
966 3,353

Annual Report 2011
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23.

B 5 & H b B E ()

75 g2 8 (4)

R EEE 5 R OR KR AR R 2 B 1S
RANT

23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

—EB——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FER F=T
US$'000 US$'000
F4) At beginning of the year 1,811 1,672
PE 5 A% Exchange adjustment 97 51
B 5 RIGRIARRERF Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 85 153
BETAIUR I MiMEEA £ % Amounts written off as uncollectible - (65)
FR At end of the year 1,993 1,811

SR 5 R LAUR TR ek 4k 4 R M 1 DR B
WE 7 UGB B R o ERRER YK
FREIBSREHBRRHENETS  EFHH
2 EMGIRTEHARI YR ] o ARE B . FLEX
SRS A EAERR

MW_ZBE——F+-_A=+—8 K@=
RBERE 5 EWFKIEA25,706,0003 7T
—Z—FT4F 14,387,000 70) © ZEE
WHUBE R L W T AR RSN EF S

R-ZE——F+-A=+—H AEEMF
—RIBITALIRH A TR E K #1961,000
EN(ZE—ZF  |)  UR—BEBKH
M AEBRENIRS - NEBEREERR
EHREREEN S EMEATRME
E YERRMBEZEMSHRESATHE
& - BIEFT AEEMIRITER IR Z (KT
5E27) °

HE-T——F+=ZA=+—H8 HfvpE
U 0 T B (B B 5 2 994,0005 T (& —
T4 1 936,000 7T) B RAZEREMGIB
B S TEE MFEE AT 28Uk - A
EEVERZEEHREEEEER -

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is made
for individually impaired trade receivables. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers that were in
financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$25,706,000
(2010: US$14,387,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group discounted certain bills
receivables of approximately US$961,000 (2010: nil) to a bank
in exchange for cash with recourse in the ordinary course of
business. The Group continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of the discounted bills receivables as financial assets
and has recognised the cash received from discounting the bills
as financial liabilities, namely bank advances for discounted bills
which is included in borrowings (note 27).

As at 31 December 2011, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$994,000 (2010: US$936,000) was recognised as
the outstandings had been aged a long period of time and these
receivables are not expected to be fully recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
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23. ESRHMEKRRKIEE) 23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
rEBE(E) Group (Continued)
AEBEEMERFUBRERENESINT Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other

receivables is as follows:

—E——F —=-ZF
2011 2010
FErx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
F4) At beginning of the year 936 1,335
BEE 5, o2& Exchange adjustment 49 41
Hth EGRIB R B, Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
(BE) other receivables 9 (440)
FER At end of the year 994 936
BREMEE I il EEI KRB Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either
B - AR ERENSREERER past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
HAR AR R R IB B - balances related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.
AAT Company
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
TERRIR Prepayments 29 29

Al IR 12011
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24. BERBRESEEY 24. Cash and Cash Equivalents

RBeMReFEMRENTIER

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

TEH ARATE

Group Company
—E——F —T-TF —E——F —E-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
FEx FEIT FEx FEL
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USs$'000
e RIRITEES Cash and bank balances 22,878 14,919 17 16
A BIERITER Less: pledged bank deposits (7,286) (92) - -
R RREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15,592 14,827 17 16

Be MIRITHEBBIERIRT  FEREUR
REBBEAE=EA KA TOERRITHF
K o FARTZRE RS A RITHFRF
RIFFHNEET R - HIERFRFAR
TSR F R ERERAS,

R=B-——F+=A=+-AR-2-F
4= B+ —BAERRGERIER S
B AEUEE T RITRE (527 RIEH B
(1 E29) TR R RORITIZ 3K o

RZZE—F+-_A=+—H A£EN
Re RIRTTH# 5 81$522,199,000F L (=&
—Z4F ¢ 14,345,0003 70 ) WERTTA RS - B
FZIEUAREAERFRFPEAIRT -
ARBIWIEERHBHER -

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand,
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are placed
with banks and earn interest at market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities (note 27) and bills
payables (note 29) as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010.

As at 31 December 2011, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$22,199,000 (2010: US$14,345,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in
the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
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25. |RA&

25. Share Capital
BAEE S5
Number of shares Amount
FET
Us$'000
FREEVIETZEEIKR Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
JERE ¢ Authorised:
RZE—ZEF—F—H - At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010
—T-FF+—A=+—H and 31 December 2011
;—T——%F
+=-—A=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
EEITRARE - Issued and fully paid:
RZE—EF—H—H At 1 January 2010 1 -
—IRIEAREEEBEMEITAN - Issue of shares pursuant to Group
Reorganisation 299,999,999 3,000
—ERAFHEE — Placing and public offering 100,000,000 1,000
—1T{F FBRERC AR — Exercise of over-allotment option 15,000,000 150
RZTZ—TF+-H=+—HK At31 December 2010 and
—ET——F+=ZH=+—H 31 December 2011 415,000,000 4,150

R-ZE—ZFNH=—+—H + 299,999,999
BREREEC.OTEILMRNDEETT A
BEASESHRBEEBELHE M
P BIBAAE B BT R AR A A 2 E B 31T
BEARERAE -

R=—Z—ZFHA+LH 100,000,000 &
REEEO0.01FE T AR A EBERE RIER
ERARABEERT BREB3.91ET -
BH - AARRG R AT LT -

R-ZE—FTERA=-+/\B - BERK
REFEITIE - WIREAR3.91B i — 31T
15,000,000% % E{E0.01 = LRI D ©

PrECBRITROEMA T EEERIREN
Betn BB HRRIMAL

Annual Report 2011
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On 21 April 2010, 299,999,999 shares of US$0.01 each were
issued in consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, pursuant to the
Group Reorganisation.

On 7 May 2010, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
of the Company were issued at HK$3.91 by way of placing and
public offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were
listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 28 May 2010, an over-allotment option was exercised and
a further 15,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each were issued at
HK$3.91 per share.

All the shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in all respect.
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26. &%
BinaERAEBE BRI HENZER -

EERFBRRERTPEEAEEONRE -
75 R B B B8 2 B i M| 0 B = 1 AT 0 K
ek e

SINGE 5 R (R IR R B 51N PR B8 2 ) B0 B 75
RHERZR -

26. Reserves

Share premium represents the excess over the nominal value for
shares allotted.

Statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the PRC
subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as required
by the relevant PRC statue.

Foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

subsidiaries.
AN T Company
R RE = st
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FET FET F=T
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
W-ZZE—ZF—HF—H At1January 2010 - - -
BiE AN EEBHMEIT Issue of shares pursuant to

iEn) Group Reorganisation 22,020 - 22,020
BT (F3E25) Issue of shares (note 25) 56,571 - 56,571
A& 31T Share issue expenses (4,726) - (4,726)
—E-TFEERIKE 2010 special dividend (note 14)

(Mi5E14) (5,390) - (5,390)
HEE NETTR S Transaction with owners 68,475 - 68,475
FAEELEEFES  Loss and total comprehensive

RSk expenses for the year - (797) (797)
R=-Z—2F At 31 December 2010

+=A=+—8H 68,475 (797) 67,678
AR B (FEE14) Dividend (note 14) (10,145) - (10,145)
HER NETR S Transaction with owners (10,145) - (10,145)
FAEELEEERFAS  Loss and total comprehensive

4BRE expenses for the year - (425) (425)
R=B——Ff At 31 December 2011

+=HA=+—~H 58,330 (1,222) 57,108
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27. BE 27. Borrowings
rEH Group
—B——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEIRITER Fixed-rate bank loans 7,150 453
ZEIRITER Variable-rate bank loans 20,272 10,240
SRITELAIR =R AT Bank advance for discounted bills 961 -
28,383 10,693
BHEA Secured 20,622 10,240
AR Unsecured 7,761 453
28,383 10,693
—F——F ——
2011 2010
FER FE
Us$'000 Us$'000
RITER Bank loans:
1FR Within one year 18,265 3,303
FE2F In the second year 8,037 2,690
$3FF5F In the third to fifth year 1,120 4,700
HARSFAEEPEE Wholly repayable within 5 years 27,422 10,693
MERNZDEIRIRITELIREYE  Bank advance for discounted bills due
EAE N within one year 961 -
o BRMERESHEIE  Less: amount due for settlement within
one year (19,226) (3,303)
AR FREEHNFUR Amount due for settlement after
one year 9,157 7,390
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27. B8 (& 27. Borrowings (Continued)
rEBE(E) Group (Continued)
—B——F —=—2F
2011 2010
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
& Represented by:

ARBEE Borrowings in RMB 13,171 1,963

EEE Borrowings in US$ 7,390 8,730

BILEE Borrowings in HK$ 7,822 -

28,383 10,693
EEREERMmERBERRNEEN Details of assets pledged as collateral to secure the borrowings
IEAMEE17 ~ 18224 R - were disclosed in notes 17, 18 and 24.
—EB——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FER F=E7T
US$'000 Us$'000
BEREFF K Effective interest rate per annum:

RITER Bank loans 4.62% 2.97%

806,323,000 T (—ZF—Z4F : 453,000 The unsecured bank borrowings of US$6,323,000 (2010:
EL)NERFEEUAREER —HHE AR US$453,000) were guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group.
TERELR -
A %0961,0003 7T /Y #R 1T 8L IR IR B 3UE Bank advance for discounted bills of US$961,000 represented the
BN _E——F+_A=+—BWBEE discounted bills with recourse as at 31 December 2011 and were
BRIRZERE - AR AEEE - ZZEBEMF unsecured. These borrowings matured within one year and were
WEEFE AARBER - repayable in RMB.
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28.

29.

EEHIBEEE 28. Deferred Tax Liabilities
rEH Group
—E——F —EZF
2011 2010
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
F1 At beginning of the year 394 394
TEHPTE L Withholding income tax
—FRXN — Paid during the year (213) -
FR At end of the year 181 394

REPBECEREEE 2T TNF—
A—B R EA R AT RIN S
FMEROKRE - BHMNENT - 546
B 7 #R 2= A 30 K kAR BB B A B R ELAY
21,601,000F L ( == —Z4F : 10,758,000
L) RECEFFTEENEREZEELRIRT
TRIERE - ARASE IS ERERD
BEOIRR - ST EAN A TE R RA
BETZREE

Wi N/N]
R-EBE——F+_A=+—"HEZZE—ZF
F+_A=+—H AQARWTEEIMEK
HHF R o

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to US$21,601,000 (2010:
US$10,758,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Company
As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Company
did not have any material temporary differences.

EZ RHEMEMNRIE 29. Trade and Other Payables
REH Group

—F——F i
2011 2010
FER F=
Us$'000 Us$'000
B SR Trade payables 8,568 4,346
FERTRIE Bills payables 632 185
E o RENFIERENRE Trade and bills payables 9,200 4,531
H b~ 08 N e AT R Other payables and accruals 6,038 3,581
15,238 8,112
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29. ESRHMBEMARKIEGE) 29. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
rEBE(E) Group (Continued)
BIEHERH  RHREPR  AEBNE Based on invoice date, ageing analysis of trade and bills payables
SIEM BN BN EEMERERSITIT ¢ of the Group as at the end of the reporting date is as follows:
—EB——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FER F=T
US$'000 USs$'000
90H AT 90 days or below 5,689 3,645
91HZE180H 91-180 days 1,231 451
181HZ365H 181-365 days 1,755 111
BiB365H Over 365 days 525 324
9,200 4,531
RZE——F+ZA=+—BRZ=ZF— As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, bills payables
TF+ZA=+—H ENEESR A of US$632,000 and US$185,000 respectively were secured by the
632,0003= 7T % 185,000 7T LA B K $R 17 pledged bank deposits (note 24).

TF AR (Hi5E24) -

EEZRRE H N HE M FE N FRIAR BREE & The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
HAFEES - other payables approximate their fair values.
b N Company
—B——F —E-TF
2011 2010
FEr FET
US$'000 Us$'000
FE=tFIE Accruals 166 122

A IR t 2011
e g 117
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30. BARSARIE 30. Financial Commitments
REHARE Operating lease commitment
TEE Group
—E——F —ET-FF
2011 2010
FErx FET
US$°000 US$'000
RIE Al EE AR S TR AR 2 Future minimum rental payable under
RIEENBEESLT : non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:
1F A Within one year 229 97
F2ESF In the second to fifth years 198 269
427 366

REBAMEERNERETYE - BOM
PRE=F(ZZ-FF: =F)  ARE
MBS AREMNBERELTE S HTENA
HREEEAY - ZFHEOBRT B ER

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
leases run for an initial period of three years (2010: three years),
with options to renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at
days as mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords. None of these leases includes any contingent rentals.

AT Company

—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FER F=x
US$'000 Us$'000

RN A RS LT LY R K Future minimum rental payable under

RIEEMBASIOT non-cancellable operating lease are

as follows:

1R Within one year 5 6
FE2E5F In the second to fifth years 2 8
7 14
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30.

31.

B RS AIE (&) 30. Financial Commitments (Continued)
BREIE Capital commitment
TEE Group
—EB——F —=—ZF
2011 2010
FER F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
B R ET 4 H & AR E Capital commitments authorised and
contracted for:
B EE Intangible assets 2,363 359
RN R Construction and equipment 2,788 1,190
5,151 1,549

R-FB——F+-A=+—-AR=Z—%
F+-A=+—8  ARRBEEAEIE -

Rk EE
AEEmEREELLEMRE RPN ZIE
MR - NREE SRR EEREBED 1
# o BERZEEAE - T NREREEERAR
SENEHETHRERE -

EEAR
AEENEEARTEREE S KR

o A MBRRREINSREHNGRE
RN ERE - LKA AEEE
BEERBBEER M EAEBEREN
fBmFH o

RREEERR  AKEEEEBCALE
ERR  HEEKAEETEERE &
EEML N EMEITEE - LA RIUR
HEITBR BB BER

N-ZEBE——F+-_A=+—H0 "  ZH5Elk
FIBEEED  H27%(ZF—Z4F : 23%)
RAREBRATF °

nBELEERRAER  FERUFHEA
HIRIT

31.

The Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2010.

Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing
the Group's short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of provision for impairment of trade
receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on
prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

As at 31 December 2011, 27% (2010, 23%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.
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31. EREE(E) 31. Risk Management (Continued)
MENE SR Liquidity risk

ARRIEFEREENRDESRARE
BER  REEAKENE -+ RYE
ERRBDETEERRK -

AEEBBERTEHE - RITRBN
BEERE REEREBALERRSR
B MEHeREERSRABNIIHRIE
o REERBIERERE o

TRAMAEEFTESRABENHRTS
RIZHAFE - TRIVBEARERA
WEREENKFRHNSRBERTR
RenEms - REME - THRITER
TTEEREF BRI BENE - M iR B REE R
MIRTTERGF AZEREEE - K3k
TEERABENZIMESNIRE HER
REHIRE -

TRESMNERAERERE - EFER
RZFBFEFENBERT - RITREH
THERREI RN KRG HE

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

AEE Group
—E——F
2011

15 R 1226 2Z55F met

Between Between

Within one and two and
one year two years five years Total
TEx TER TER TERn
US$'000 Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000
Ry Borrowings 20,162 8,336 1,172 29,670
EFENFENRENER Trade and bills payables 9,200 - - 9,200
H i RUB R ERTFUA Other payables and accruals 6,038 - - 6,038
35,400 8,336 1,172 44,908
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31. EREE(E)

31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AEE(E) Group (Continued)
—ET-FF
2010
1R 1226 2E5F st
Between Between
Within one and two and
one year two years five years Total
T FEr FxEr FxEr
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 USs$'000
T Borrowings 3,536 2,827 4,753 11,116
ZoENZFELENEE Trade and bills payables 4,531 - - 4,531
H At FE 5B K JE R T 008 Other payables and accruals 3,545 - - 3,545
11,612 2,827 4,753 19,192
FiN/NE] Company
e
2011
1FR et
Within one year Total
FErR FErx
US$'000 UsS$'000
FEETSRIA Accruals 166 166
—E-FF
2010
1A wEt
Within one year Total
FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEET IR Accruals 122 122

257 BME B A BN FE BRI
EfE o LRI ESBEROTET
EFBENSERRER -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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31. EEE(E) 31. Risk Management (Continued)

ShE AR
ARSI 35 5 M R M SV R B
R A BB 2 A B AR H & A
ERAEENREHBANNEBLE
W -

AREEE B A EIMNEERBOR o Rl - E
BEERIMNERR  AIHNAREREE
EhoNE R -

AR ER

AEEEEHN SN EEEEREREN
WEBH X ENAKREERAE - A%
B R1T R E M R MERIGERE M 27
1R o ANEKE B AT BN o

TXHEOGEREDN - HRERE AR
FTETAMMEEARETE - BLFBHE
BEMS  BAIHIHERENEEHREH
AEENAESENEBAFEOREREM
RE - EABAETZEEABREN XA
G FAS0EE LT TR © & TR
REEEE MR A IE R sEE BT

PRI T,/ L F508E - AT R
ST - AEE

e HE-—Z——F+-A=+—H8HL
FEMNRMERZZE——F+=A
=+—AREBEF DRI wA
98,0003 L (=T —Z4F : 1,
450,000 70) © FTEHRRAEER
2 EIRITIEEEmE AT RRB T
&

o AKAEER-_ZT——F+=-_HA=+—H
B RERS 9 B A, Rk 498,000 TT
(—Z—Z4F : 1,52 50,000%
JT) °

REF - AEBEYHN R GURERMER
HBRE BERTTEEIBINFTEL -
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 27. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all
other variables were held constant, the Group'’s:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and retained
profits as at 31 December 2011 would increase/decrease by
US$98,000 (2010: increase/decrease by US$50,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank borrowings; and

o The Group's equity as at 31 December 2011 would increase/
decrease by US$98,000 (2010: increase/decrease by
US$50,000).

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate bank
borrowings.
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31. EREE(E)

BERBTNERMEERAEHNE
MBRRRAEFNNERER NS RE

ENTRAEERIAR -

31. Risk Management (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial

position relate to the following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

KEE Group
—F——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FEx FET
Us$°000 Us$'000
EREE Financial assets
B EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
E 5 K H b IS Trade and other receivables 40,153 27,526
BRIRIRI TR Pledged bank deposits 7,286 92
HERIRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15,592 14,827
63,031 42,445
ko 3=Ri Financial liabilities
RN BEE) S BB (& ¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
BE Borrowings 28,383 10,693
BE5NEMEMFIE Trade and other payables 15,238 8,076
43,621 18,769
AAT Company
—F——F e
2011 2010
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
SHMEE Financial assets
BN EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
JEUSEI B A R TE Amount due from a subsidiary 36,358 46,885
BeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17 16
36,375 46,901
=R Financial liabilities
FEERR AT BEHI S BB (& ¢ Finandial liabilities at amortised cost:
EstaoE Accruals 166 122
166 122
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31. EfaEE(E) 31. Risk Management (Continued)
BERXER Capital management

AEBEREEN  UERAKENERS
AIRER S - RREZ B CERERAN
LE - BEESEARBRADR - NE
ENEREEHEFESHIFTE -

AEBNEARBREER (B ME27
KENEER) RE MBITERMARBE
BEAELE#E(BRDBITEDN - @R RE
B ) o

AEBEZAGNBEVBABREEEAS
o AREREEZENREE MR EE
ZEBRE - BEEARBLAFHAE -
REFLRHBEERRE  AEER AR
ENTFERROBRESE RREARTR
R BIHBRORBEEERS -

RFEMROFEERBLRMOT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 27, cash and bank balances and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting date was as follows:

—E——F —E—TF

2011 2010

FEx FET

US$’000 US$'000

EE(MFE27) Borrowings (note 27) 28,383 10,693
e RR1THEER(FTEE24) Cash and bank balances (note 24) (22,878) (14,919)
B 55 Net debt 5,505 (4,226)
M Equity 99,340 92,265
B F R R Net debt to equity ratio 5.5% EAN/A
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32. BEAFRS 32. Related Party Transactions

BREEVI AT INE BB T RS MERR
S REREBERBITTET T IIRS

Apart from those transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed in note 11, the following transactions were carried out
with related parties during the year:

—E——F —EF-EF
2011 2010
Bzt FER FE
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
FEREEN Non-recurring:
ENREMNBATHSER Rental fees paid to fellow subsidiaries (i) 11 8
PERIEMB AR ERE A Consultancy fee paid to a fellow (ii)
subsidiary 51 -
(i) MAEEEELENMENRAETE BER (i) Fees paid to fellow subsidiaries for rental of office premises, hotel and

SEREHEMARRMBRRXNOER © %
EZ WK ETRAE 14AE R EFERE
R 5 EERE ETREIE14A33Q3) (k2 E#
% o

(ii) LIRS B R A B R RS M A R R KB AR
TRNER - AR FER ETRAIFI14AZER
TERAERZ SEEIRE ETARRIE14A 333) 1K
2HEEHR -

ARFEERA - Y LBEATR S
— T A AR R TR E BRI
7

TZERABNFMARENTFARA
EEMeRH - FBAMEN -

meeting room for daily operation of the Group. These transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules but were fully exempted under Rule 14A.33(3) of the
Listing Rules.

(ii) Fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for consultancy services provided to the
Group. This transaction constituted connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but was fully exempted under Rule
14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 11.
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33. KRRETEMBRATZFE 33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company
KRB EFENBRARIR-_ZE——F+=A Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
—t+—Bk-_ZTE—ZTF+-_A=1+—HH 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as follows:
ST UM
&L BRIRBERE
% RYBER %  EMERFE AREFENEREE IEXRH

Particulars of
Country/Place of issued and fully

incorporation/ paid share capital/ Effective interest
Name establishment registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
—B-—-f —T-TF
2011 2010
EEREAER
Interests held directly
PR EERER AR RERAHE 29,491,360l B EE 100% 100%  REZK
1ET SRk
Lansen Pharmaceutical The British Virgin -~ 29,491,360 ordinary Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands shares of US$1 each
BESEES
Interests held indirectly
REFERERAF 0 REEVE T2 BB 100% 100%  ®EZER
Point Kin International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
Limited
BAERE(BRB)AERAR AR 100 EREETETZ 100% 100%  ®REZK
Limikin
Lansen Investments Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each
RYIBAE i AR 29,498,0007C 100% 100%  BEER
Shenzhen Lansen The PRC RMB29,498,000 Pharmaceutical business
B E HF AE#236,000,0007T 100% 100%  BEEK
Ningbo Liwah The PRC RMB236,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
ERIEEMROBMAR + AR #28,000,0007 100% 100%  BEXEK
NG|
Ningbo Liwah Plant The PRC RMB28,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
Extraction Technology
Limited

A | Report 2011
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33. ARARETENBATZFEE) 33. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

MR, EBRTRBERE/
a8 RYER %  EMEXFHE ARARENERES IERE

Particulars of
Country/Place of issued and fully

incorporation/ paid share capital/ Effective interest
Name establishment registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
2 CZZT-%F
2011 2010
ERAERERR AT i AR #35,000,0007T 100% 100%  BEER
Ningbo Lansen The PRC RMB35,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
Pharmaceutical Company
Limited
ENREENERBRAR  FHE AR#3,500,0007T 100% - BEXT
Bozhou Lansen Herbal The PRC RMB3,500,000 Pharmaceutical business
Industry Limited
RO EER AU AREFHEXEE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
EEESENHBAR - BERA5 0 121 opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
HAM B A B S e E N SRR TTE of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

A IR t 2011
e ey 127



A& B8 B AR B PR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

B2
Financial Summary

BZE+-HA=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—ETLF ZEF)N\F ZEENF ZE-ITF ZEB——F
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
TET FET TET FET FER
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000  US$'000

B RESULTS
WA Revenue 24,150 37,119 47,932 58,607 74,475
FEF Gross profit 16,455 26,025 32,439 38,433 44,387
K BS54 B ) Profit before income tax 836 5,952 8,903 12,785 15,148
RET =R Income tax expense (404) (879) (1,523) (2,572) (2,695)
F R 7 Profit for the year 432 5,073 7,380 10,213 12,453
BR+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—ETLF —TE)N\F —EENF —TTF ZE——F
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
FET FE FET FET FEx
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
BERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BB Total assets 46,942 60,377 63,188 112,611 144,445
BwaE Total liabilities (25,903)  (37,635)  (33,232)  (20,346)  (45,105)
BEFE Net assets 21,039 22,742 29,956 92,265 99,340

HE_ZEZNAF+_A=1t—"HIF=EFESZF The results and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the three
HEBEMEENRBERE IS EARAFN = years ended 31 December 2009 were extracted from the Company's
T-ZFNA -+ BFENERER - prospectus dated 27 April 2010.
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